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HEARING ON EVEN START AND FAMILY LITERACY PROGRAMS UNDER
THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION ACT

WEDNESDAY, MAY 12, 1999

"HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND THE WORKFORCE,
WASHINGTON, D.C.

The Committee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:31 am., in Room 2175, Rayburn
House Office Building, Hon. William Goodling [Chairman of the Committee] presiding.

Present: Representatives Goodling, Petri, Barrett, McKeon, Talent, Souder,
Schaffer, Deal, DeMint, Isakson, Clay, Kildee, Martinez, Woolsey, McCarthy, Tierney,
Kind, Sanchez, Ford, Kucinich, Wy, and Holt.

Staff present: Sally Lovejoy, Majority Senior Education Policy Advisor; Michael
Reynard, Majority Media Assistant; Lynn Selmser, Majority Professional Staff Member;
Kevin Talley, Majority Staff Director; Shane Wright, Majority Legislative Assistant; Dan
Lara, Majority Press Secretary; Alex Nock, Minority Education Legislative Associate,
June Harris, Minority Education Coordinator; Roxana Folescu, Minority Education Staff
Assistant; ‘Gail Weiss, Minority Staff Director; Mark Zuckerman, Minority General
Counsel; Marshall Grigsby, Minority Education Legislative Associate; and Mary Ellen
-Ardouny, Minority Education Legislative Associate.

OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN WILLIAM F. GOODLING,
COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND THE WORKFORCE, U.S. HOUSE OF
REPRESENTATIVES, WASHINGTON, DC

Chairman Goodling. [presiding] Good morning. We are pleased to have all of you
with us to talk about family literacy.

As Members have heard me say many times, I was so embarrassed with the way 1
was using Title I or Chapter I money, I don't remember which it was way back then,
when I was a superintendent of a school. Because we would never know how much we
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were getting; we never knew when we were getting it; and normally it came in October or
November, after your planning was supposed to have been completed. So finally, I threw
up my hands and said, “Well, at least we should be able to go out and do something with
the parents and the children long before they get to school. Because we know every
person in the district that dropped out of school; we know every older brother or sister
that dropped out of school; and we know every parent that dropped out of school. Why
don't we see whether we can ahead of time?”

So we went out and went into the homes and spent several months working with
the parent and the children in the home. We didn't bring them into a session in school
even after we finished that. Mostly, we took them to a room in a church so they didn't,
all of a sudden, have that school setting, because they were only 3-and 4-year-olds.

We found that their parents began coming to PTA meetings that they had never
come to, and started participating. We found that the children, when they arrived in
school, were reading-ready and ready to go; it was a great experience. I always say I
don't know how it took us so long to realize if you don't deal with the entire family, you
are not going to accomplish very much. So it took us a long time to understand that.

So I am happy to have you here today. We are hoping that, when they are
finished with the struggle over the appropriation process, that family literacy will have
done well.

[The statement of Chairman Goodling follows:]

WRITTEN OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN WILLIAM F. GOODLING,
COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND THE WORKFORCE, U.S. HOUSE OF
REPRESENTATIVES, WASHINGTON, DC — SEE APPENDIX A

Chairman Goodling. I would now turn to the Ranking Member, Mr. Clay.

OPENING STATEMENT OF RANKING MEMBER WILLIAM CLAY,
COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND THE WORKFORCE, U.S. HOUSE OF
REPRESENTATIVES, WASHINGTON, DC

Mr. Clay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and good morning.

Today's hearing on Even Start and family literacy highlights two of the many
successes in the use of Federal education funds at the local level. Both the Even Start
Program and the use of family literacy by other programs, such as title 1, have been
shown to increase student achievement and the educational and parenting ability of
families generally.

The testimony that we will hear today will be useful as we proceed with the
reauthorization of Even Start and other Federal education programs.

O
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In the last Congress, we passed President Clinton's America Reads Reading
Excellence Act which helps children leamn to read well by the end of the third grade
through tutoring, teacher training, and family literacy activities.

This year the administration has proposed significant increases for prograrms to
help adults master literacy and other basic skills, including a $103-million increase to
expand State literacy efforts for immigrants and other limited English-proficient adults.

Literacy, Mr. Chairman, is a gateway skill necessary to succeed in today's
workplace. Unfortunately, we have yet to fully grasp the significance of our Nation's
literacy problem. American businesses lose an estimated $60 billion in productivity each
year due to employees' lack of basic skills. In addition, approximately 20 percent of ™
America's workers have low basic skills, and 75 percent of unemployed adults have

reading or writing difficulties. Workers who lack high school diplomas eam monthly

incomes of $452 compared to $1,829 for those with a bachelor's degree. Mr: Chairman, I
look forward to the testimony today and welcome the witnesses, hoping that-we continue
to focus on the positive nature of our Federal education investments in future hearings.

I yield back the balance of my time.

Chairman Goodling. Any other comments?
[No response. ]

If not, our witnesses are Sharon Darling, president of National Center for Family
Literacy -- and of course, I called on her when I tried to move our Even Start Program, to
come and tell us what it is we should know. She is the founder of the National Center for
Family Literacy. She will provide the Committee with an overview of family literacy
concepts. She will also outline the components of a quality family literacy program.

Andy Hartman, we all -- or most of us are old enough — know Dr. Hartman from

-when he was here with the-Committee. He was a former staff member of the Committee

and staff director; he will discuss the importance of evaluations on the Even Start
Program, and the use of instructional programs based on scientific research.

Cheryl Keenan is the director of the Bureau of Adult.Basic and Literacy
Education with the Pennsylvania Department of Education. She is the head of Adult
Education for the State of Pennsylvania and she manages the Even Start Program for the
State.

Mary Brown is the program su];ervisor of the Even Start Family Education
Program in Oklahoma City Public Schools.

Ms. Dayle Bailey is the adult-education/parenting educator for the Richmond
County Family Literacy Project in Rockingham, North Carolina.

And Sister Barbara Ann English from the Notre Dame Mission AmenCorp
Volunteer Program in Baltimore, Maryland.
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So we are happy to have all of you, and we will start and go down the line.

All of your statement will appear in the record, and summarize if you can so that
we have time to ask questions.

Sharon.
~

STATEMENT OF MS. SHARON DARLING, PRESIDENT, NATIONAL CENTER
FOR FAMILY LITERACY, LOUISVILLE, KENTUCKY

Ms. Darling. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman Goodling, and I hope that this Nation
can find some way to honor you for your incredible contribution to families throughout
this Nation as we move forward.

And I appreciate the opportunity to be here, and thank you to the Committee
Members for inviting me to testify today.

Chairman Goodling. Mr. Clay has already indicated he is going to give me $100,000.
[Laughter.]
Just to get rid of me.

[Laughter.]

Ms. Darling. It is not nearly enough. Iam sure if we took up a collection, maybe we
could find a little more.

It is a wonderful opportunity to be here to talk about family literacy. I was here in
1988 at the first hearing on family literacy, and it was an incredible experience then, as
we started thinking about the Even Start legislation. So it is fitting to come back and let
you know how we are doing in the Nation in family literacy.

My role today is going to be to talk to you a little bit about the national movement
of family literacy; what it is exactly that we are doing; and how it is working. I will make
a few brief suggestions and recommendations about the reauthorization of the Elementary
and Secondary Education Act. More detailed recommendations are in my written
testimony.

As you well know, the under-education of parents is so linked to their children's
success in school that sometimes parents who don't have basic skills not only lack the
resources to be citizens and workers, but they also lack the resources to provide both
educational and noneducational support for their children in the home. That the failure of
children and the reading test scores that we see of the bottom 20 percent of our children
are so tied to their parents, the parental involvement of their parents, and basic skills of
their parents; that it is essential that family literacy be front and center in the

RIC
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reauthorization of the ESEA, and particularly in Title 1.

Family literacy, as it spread across the Nation, has really emhedded itself in a
number of Federal programs and I think epitomizes-what we would like to see in funding
streams of Federal programs coming together at the local level. Which is that we would
no longer have silos of funding, but have funding that comes together to focus on a whole
family. The synergy of that is what we really would.like to see at the local level with
many programs, and family literacy typifies that and epitomizes that for the Nation.

Family literacy, in its most comprehensive form, is that defined in legislation in
the Adult Education Act, the Community Services Block Grant Act, Even Start, and Head
Start, which is really the interactive literacy activities between-parents and their children,
training for parents regarding how to be the primary teacher for their children and full
partners in'the education of their children, parent and.literacy training, and age-
appropriate education for children.

What that really means is that we are helping parents get the skills they need to
become self-sufficient, to be employed,and the skills they need to help their children as
they go through school. It-also means that we are helping children get.that.start that they
need in order to be competitive with their more advantaged peers. We are also helping
those children, as they move through our elementary grades, be successful. It also means
that we are helping parents, sometimes for the first time, come together with their own
children and learn to help-those children-and-learn to be the parents that they want to be

.and be:the support for their-child's education.

Itis a very powerful:intervention, but it is very comprehensive. It is integrated; it
is intensive,-and it'needs to be of sufficient duration to actually help the bottom 20
percent of those parents and.children in our Nation.

When it:is well implemented and of high quality, it produces excellent results, and
those results will carry us forward for this generation and the next.

I want to share with you just a few studies about what we know about how family
literacy is working. The National Center for Family Literacy has been looking at many
research studies.around the country tracking parents and children. Actually at our center,
‘we have 7,000 famiilies that we have been tracking all over the country for the past 8
years. I'want to just talk about a fewof the studies that have been done on family literacy
programs.

This particular one is on Even Start. In 1997, there was a study of 534 children
who were studied, looking at them when they enrolled as 3-and 4-year-old children, and
now they are in the K-5 system. What happened to those children along the way? Did
the spiral that started up continue up?

What we found was that they were ranked very, very high above average on
-almost all skills contributing to school success, and 90 percent of those children showed
satisfactory-grades as they moved through the K-5 system. Their parents, also, 54
percent of them got a GED; 45 percent of them who were on public assistance were
removed from public assistance, and we know that it is an excellent welfare strategy.
Family literacy really looks at two generations and moving both to self-sufficiency, not
sacrificing one for the other. Fifty percent of those who were not in education and
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training, and a large percentage of them were, were employed. We also found that things
changed in the homes. Parents started talking to their children about school, visiting their
children's school, were highly involved in their children's education.

We have looked over time at the statistically significant changes in families, and
we know that if we really bring the whole family into the equation, we can make
sustainable changes.

It is with that backdrop that I would like to make a couple of recommendations:
That we acknowledge the fact that the bottom 20 percent of the children are not going to
be able to be helped fully unless we help their parents as well. So there needs to be a
much stronger definition of family literacy in the ESEA reauthorization in all Titles,
particularly Title I and the Comprehensive School Reform Demonstration Project. We
can no longer limit ihat to only the schoolhouse walls. We really need to look beyond
that and send a message, that it is about the home and the family as well as the schools,
and we need to really take that on if we are going to be successful.

One specific recommendation is for the Bureau of Indian Affairs, a population of
Native Americans who are generally left out of the mainstream. Family literacy is highly
successful on Native American reservations. We have been working on 21 since 1991. 1
would strongly recommend that in order to expand those programs, that the BIA be
allowed to be a State agency for the purposes of Even Start, just as they are with title 1,
so that we can more effectively use those resources.

I would also like to close by saying that Congressman Goodling was generous
enough to conduct a policy roundtable with Representative Ernie Fletcher and
Representative Anne Northup at the National Conference on Family Literacy last month.
At this public forum, some of these recommendations were discussed. A transcript of
that event is being prepared by a court reporter and will be distributed to the members of
this Committee. And once the transcript has been received, I respectfully ask the
Chairman that the transcript be submitted for the record.

I think we know that family literacy works; it can be an important strategy in the
success of students in this Nation. We really need to put a stronger emphasis on it as we
reauthorize the ESEA.

Thank you.

[The statement of Ms. Darling follows:]

WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF MS. SHARON DARLING, PRESIDENT, NATIONAL
CENTER FOR FAMILY LITERACY, LOUISVILLE, KENTUCKY — SEE APPENDIX
B

Chairman Goodling. Thank you very much.

I recognize the Ranking Member for introduction.

1i
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Mr. Clay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I would like to-acknowledge and recognize the presence at the hearing this
morning of some 8C -tudents from Capitol Commitment, which is a nonprofit training
school headquartered here in the District of Columbia.

Capitol Commitment provides job skills training into telecommunications, and
when the graduates complete their courses, they work as telephone technicians. And I
think they are proud of a 97 percent placement record after graduation and a retention
record of 75 percent.

So, I want to say “thank you” to this program. It is evidence that some Federal
programs do work, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Goodling. And the jobs are-unlimited; all you have to do is be prepared. So,
thank you for getting prepared. Dr. Hartman.

STATEMENT OF DR. ANDREW HARTMAN, DIRECTOR, NATIONAL
INSTITUTE FOR LITERACY, WASHINGTON, D.C.

Dr. Hartman. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee.

This is for me a really special pleasure to be able to be part of a hearing on Even
Start. And since you mentioned, I was a part of your staff when we both came and were
talking about your experiences in Pennsylvania and started considering creating
legislation around it. -We had the first hearings that Sharon Darling was a participant in.
And I would assume Mr. Kildee was also, as.the Chairman of the Subcommittee at that
time, a part of that as well. And Mr. Houghton was very involved.

So it is really great to be here so many years later -- 11 years later -- from when it
was signed into law, and really to celebrate how it has turned from an idea into a
program, and really, as you saw in Kentucky, into a movement around the country. What
I find very exciting is what is happening at the State and local levels. States like
Pennsylvania, South Carolina, Arizona, and others are using their own funds, and local
programs and local cities and towns are using their own monies to investment in family
literacy. Probably the best sign of success is when someone else takes the money out of
their pocket and sees the value and spends it on an issue. And that is happening with
family literacy, as you know. '

I would really like to focus on two things this morning. One thing I would say,
being on this side versus that side, is it seems like the red light comes on a lot faster from
down here so, I am going to try to move very quickly through the two topics.

One is to talk really briefly about the national evaluations that have gone on since

the day one of Even Start. This program has been evaluated very well. And, secondly,
what some of the research base on literacy development might indicate for improving
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Even Start practices.

Let me just start off by saying that the research base for the basic premise that
parents have to be, and are, a key part of helping children become readers and becoming
literate and successful in school has gotten stronger since 1988 when we had the first
hearing on Even Start.

In a recent presentation, Dr. Reid Lyon, from the National Institute for Health --
many of you know his work on reading -- who was speaking about what is it that causes
and we need to deal with in preventing reading difficulties in children. He listed having
language and literacy experiences during infancy and the preschool years as one of the
six factors that researchers clearly indicated have a major role in preventing reading
difficulties. What happens before children get to school and when they are in school at
home and in the community is critically important. He pointed to 45 separate researchers
and their work that have been published in scientific journals to support that. So itis
irrefutable, from a research base, that what Even Start is attempting to deal with is
absolutely critical.

What we did not have at the time, when we were trying to get Even Start into law,
really was a programmatic approach to how to then help parents, particularly those who
have the lowest literacy skills, take that step forward and become really empowered to be
their children's first and best teachers, as you said.

I think we really have to remember and be honest about that. We knew the
problem, and their had been experiences like yours in Pennsylvania, and Sharon's in
Kentucky, but we didn't, frankly, have a research base on the implementation and the
programmatic part. So when I talk about the Even Start evaluation, I think we have to
see it like we see medical research and a lot of business research, is that it is an ongoing
effort to continuously find better and better solutions to the problem. We didn't know the
answer and the perfect program 10 years ago, and we don't know it today, frankly, but we
are getting closer.

Let me talk about a couple of things we have learned from the evaluation. One,
Even Start is targeting the absolutely right parents; 87 percent of parents of children in
Even Start are school dropouts; 54 percent have dropped out before the 9th grade. So
these are some of the most educationally in need parents in our whole country. In
addition, the parents are getting younger, and many, many are below the poverty level.

On the outcome side is a bit of a mixed message. The results for the children
have been positive and encouraging. In the very first evaluation where they had a control
group involved, the children in Even Start outpaced the control group. Parents are getting
GED's in Even Start programs at almost four times the rate than they would otherwise
from the same research.

One of the things we did not see is a kind of strong literacy gains in the parents
that we would hope to see outside of the GED gains, particularly in parents who have
very low literacy levels, and whose GED is still probably several years outside their
grasp; we didn't see the kind of literacy gains. We did see increases in home support for
literacy types of activities in the Even Start sample.

i3
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One of the other things we have learned, in general, is how to do evaluations
better. There is a third evaluation being conducted right now by Abt Associates, funded
by the U.S. Department of Education. And you know Mary Jean LeTendre and Pat
McKee have been doing a great job in terms of implementing this act. That is going to be
the largest and best evaluation to date. There will be a control group of a large number of
parents, and we will get the best data ever. This will probably a year from now that we
will have new data on a more recent sample of Even Start programs with better research,
a better model that we have learned from the first two waves of evaluation.

Secondly, we have learned some very specific things, and those have been put
into the law. The law has been amended based on what we have learned from the
evaluations. There has'been technical assistance to help programs implement it, and the
results have improved as a result.

The intensity issue is one. You, Congressman Goodling, amended Even Start
several years ago because of the first evaluation showing that there was not an intense
enough level of educational. services for the parents and families. People just weren't
coming enough and getting enough services. The law was changed. Lynn Selmser and
others on the Minority staff worked with you in a bipartisan way to change the law.

Mary Jean LeTendre and her staff and Sharon Darling and the Center for Family Literacy
have.done technical assistance and helped programs to understand how to do that better.
And it has made a difference in the services.

‘What we have also learned, as I said, is this has to be a continuous effort. We
need to keep looking to do this better, and I would suggest two recommendations.

One is we need to look at the adult education component. Sharon talked about the
four components of family literacy. When you think about it, we are really just asking
children to do what we want every children to do, but do it better and to keep up with
their peers. We are asking the parents to do two things. One is improve your literacy

- skills. Get your GED; get a better job; but also use those skills to help, when you go
home, help your child so he or she, herself, will improve their literacy skills. For an adult
with very little literacy skills, this is a tremendous undertaking. And it will take an
excellent, very targeted, well-run adult education picce to make that happen.

I think we have not probably adequately worked with the adult education
component, which is often an existing adult ed program in a community, to have them
provide the family literacy piece of adult education to the extent that it needs to.

The new amendments that were put into the Adult Ed Act by the Workforce and
Investment Act that makes family literacy a bigger part of adult education, I think will go
a long way to helping that.

Finally, | would just say that the work that has been going on for the last 20 years
-- and Mr. Clay talkec about the Reading Excellent Act -- about what we have learned
about how human beings, but children as well, learn to read.. It has been some of the best
and most ground-breaking work in education over all anywhere in the world, and at any
one place or time. And the Reading Excellence Act is going to do a great job of getting
that out.
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The focus of taking that research and testing and really developing, through
research, implementation and interventions has been mostly focused on the classroom
context, which is where the Reading Excellence Act is primarily focused.

There hasn't really been adequate resources spent on taking that knowledge base
and looking at the family literacy context and situation and creating models that will take
that research and bring it in to the intergenerational approach. And as a result, we really
haven't adequately taken advantage of that research in the family literacy programs, I
believe.

I think the Institute for Literacy, the Department of Education, and NICHD could
and should all work together. But, frankly, I think we would need some support to fund
this kind of work that we need to get done to develop those models, so we would see the
results that I know you want.

Thank you.

[The statement of Dr. Hartman follows:]

WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF DR. ANDREW HARTMAN, DIRECTOR, NATIONAL
INSTITUTE FOR LITERACY, WASHINGTON, D.C. — SEE APPENDIX C

Chairman Goodling. Ms. Keenan.

STATEMENT OF MS. CHERYL KEENAN, DIRECTOR, BUREAU OF ADULT
BASIC AND LITERACY EDUCATION, PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION, HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA

Ms. Keenan. Good morning Mr. Goodling and Members of the Committee.

I would like to thank you, first, for your longstanding support of the Even Start
program and target my remarks today to issues of family literacy that are specific to
Pennsylvania, and to tell you about how Pennsylvania has used the Even Start Program to
jettison larger efforts in Pennsylvania designed to support issues that are specific to
Pennsylvania's needs.

I hope that my testimony provides you with an illustrative example of why States
need flexible Federal legislation to accomplish its goals.

First, I would like to tell you a little bit about myself. My name is Cheryl
Keenan; I am the director of the Bureau of Adult Basic and Literacy Education in the
Pennsylvania Department of Education, and I am responsible for the administration of the
Even Start Family Literacy Program, as well as Title II of the Workforce Investment Act,
the Adult Education and Family Literacy Act, and some related State programs.
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My comments today come from the perspective of someone who is responsible
for designing State programs that leverage State, Federal and local resources to fit the
needs of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania under the leadership of our Governor, Tom
Ridge.

The work of this current Congress, specifically in advancing the opportunities to
design comprehensive family literacy services, is well noted. And the opportunities that
you have provided to States through title Il of WIA, through the-Reading Excellence Act,
through Head Start, through Even Start, and through the Community Services Block
Grant give us unparalleled opportunities to use family literacy to accomplish multiple
public policy priorities. So with that, I would like to tell you a story about Pennsylvania.

In 1992, when Even Start was transferred from Federal to State control,
Pennsylvania was awarded about $3.3. million. ‘And with those Federal resources, we
funded 15 Even Start projects, and over the years, they grew to 24 -projects by about
1998. So that in this period of time, Pennsylvania really did grow strong expertise in
family literacy and a strong base of support for family literacy services.

During the 1998-1999 State budget process, Governor Ridge proposed a new
State family literacy initiative which earmarked $3 million of State adult literacy
appropriation for family literacy services. So in the early days of policy decision making

- about this new program in Pennsylvania, we turned to our Even Start programs to advise

us on issues of practice. And one of the first decisions that we made was to merge Even
Start and the Pennsylvania Family Literacy Program into one-comprehensive Statewide
program of family literacy.

That decision alone allowed us to leverage the current Federal money to effect an
$8-million Statewide program of family literacy; something that I think is well noted in
the history of how States are approaching family literacy. The net result of that merging
allowed us to fund 53 programs of family literacy in the State. Those programs were in
36 different counties-and were designed to serve 2,500 families in Pennsylvania. So the

-existence-of the Even Start Program was instrumental in Pennsylvania achieving its

family literacy goals.

The second point that I would like to make is that States need flexible pieces of
Federal legislation to achieve State-determined.policies and priorities. In designing the
family literacy program in Pennsylvania, we reflected on the major priorities of our
Governor and in the needs of our Commonwealth, especially in terms of the education
agenda and the economic and workforce development agenda. So the family literacy
program was designed to support and add value to existing Commonwealth initiatives.
And I would like to give you a few illustrative examples of that.

First, in Pennsylvania, family literacy supports academic achievement for all
students, as-defined by. the Pennsylvania Academic Standards. It does this by providing
preschool children v::h appropriate early childhood experiences to ensure that children
enter-school with the readiness skills that they need for academic success. And it
prepares parents to be active partners in the literacy acquisition of their children.

Secondly, family literacy in Pennsylvania supports the Governor's early childhood
reading initiative, Read to Succeed. That program is designed to ensure that all children
will be able to read with comprehension no later than the end of the third grade. -Read to
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Succeed acknowledges the importance of parent support of children in literacy
acquisition, which, of course, is a primary tenet in all family literacy programs.

Third, in Pennsylvania, family literacy works collaboratively with strong public
libraries. In Pennsylvania, our Governor has doubled our public resources for libraries to
strengthen the library infrastructure. And in Pennsylvania, we have partnered with the
library system to be sure that there are extensive reading opportunities that are available
for families during the summer months, and extended reading activities into the
community.

Fourth, it supports our economic development agerida by being sure that in the
adult components, that there is a critical integration of work-based skills into the adult
education curriculum.

Lastly, it prepares adults for economic self-sufficiency by working specifically
with welfare recipients and prioritizing services based on an individual's welfare status,
by varying the degrees of intensity of services that welfare recipients get depending on
where they are in their timelines with welfare reform, and by including family literacy
services into an individual's agreement of mutual responsibility and providing special
Welfare-to-Work demonstration grants.

So in these ways, family literacy is supporting the broad policy goals that have
been set to address the needs of Pennsylvania's citizens. And I would hope that
Congress, in reauthorizing Even Start, will understand that States require optimal
flexibility in order to pull State and Federal programs together in ways that address State-
specific needs, because there are no cookie-cutter approaches for literacy that fit all 50
States.

Very quickly, a third point that I would like to make is to talk a little bit about
how Pennsylvania is approaching accountability for family literacy programs and to
make the point that, in Pennsylvania, we believe that the ultimate accountability that
exists is between the Commonwealth and its local programs, because, ultimately,
Pennsylvania has the greatest need to ensure that its citizens are properly served.

We have in adult education put into place program performance standards for
accountability and continuous improvement projects prior to the enactment of WIA to
demonstrate that accountability is important to us. And we are planning to do the same
with our family literacy program whether or not it is contained in reauthorization
language that accountability is important to States.

So, in conclusion, what I want to reemphasize is that Pennsylvania has used the
opportunities provided by the Federal Even Start Program to create the existence of a
strong Statewide comprehensive family literacy program; that we would not have been
able to do that without Even Start; and without Even Start, it would be unlikely that we
would have mobilized our State resources as quickly as we did to achieve our goals.

But more importantly, Pennsylvania has managed to use the family literacy

program to support what Pennsylvania needs to ensure the academic success of its
students and realize its economic development agenda.
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Our approach to accountability is one that makes sense for the quality of our
programs and for coordinating those measures with other initiatives that family literacy

supports.

So, by implementing specific State initiatives, such as Read to Succeed, the

. Pennsylvania Academic Standards, and Team Pennsylvania, Pennsylvania has positioned

O
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family literacy to be an important contributor to the things that are important to
Pennsylvania--its children, its families, its communities, and its competitive advantage
for its businesses and its citizens.

Thank you.

[The statement of Ms. Keenan follows:]

WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF MS. CHERYL KEENAN, DIRECTOR, BUREAU OF
ADULT BASIC AND LITERACY EDUCATION, PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT
OF EDUCATION, HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA - SEE APPENDIX D

Chairman Goodling. Ms. Bailey.

STATEMENT OF MS. DAYLE BAILEY, ADULT EDUCATION/PARENTING
EDUCATOR, RICHMOND COUNTY FAMILY LITERACY PROJECT,
ROCKINGHAM, NORTH CAROLINA

Ms. Bailey. Good morning Chairman Goodling and fellow Committee Members.

I appreciate the opportunity to tell you today about Even Start and how this
program and the opportunities it offers is making a big difference in the families in
Richmond County, North Carolina.

Our Even Start Program began 6 years ago as many other family literacy
programs have begun, when a disturbing trend was seen to be developing in which
children would come for kindergarten registration with severe developmental delays and
modalities, particularly in the area of language, with delays of up to two years. And
when you are talking about a 4 to 5-year-old child who is entering school two years
behind where he or she should be, this child is really coming to school being set up for
failure. Because of this, our family literacy programs have developed.

Many of the parents really love their children as we love our children, but they
didn't really realize :}. importance that they had to play in the educational success of
their child by participating--by reading to their child and by participating in the school
system. Many of the parents lacked support systems. There were services in the
community to which they could go to improve their lives, but in many cases, there were
barriers that prevented them from utilizing these services, such as lack of transportation,
no child care for younger siblings, or poor communication skills due to which they really
could not find out what services were offered and which services for which they were

o 1-8-‘_ ._
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qualified.

So we feel we have-found a solution in the Even Start Family Literacy Program,
which provides the basis for an effective home/school/community partnership. Not only
does Even Start provide educational opportunities for parents and their children, but it
also offers an opportunity to centralize, coordinate, and build upon existing community
agencies. Therefore, the agencies, instead of duplicating services, are all pulling together
with Even Start as the hub of the services, to offer more comprehensive services to
family.

Through the four components of the program, parents come to school at our site.
We are a rural community, literally on the wrong side of the tracks, in the lowest
socioeconomic area of the county. We are a very comprehensive family literacy program
that offers early childhood education, NAEYC-certified preschool programs. This is our
6th year, and each year of the 6 years, for 9 months instruction, our preschool students
have gained from 1¢-:0 24 months in language skills.

At the same time, the parents are provided opportunities and experiences through
parenting in order to practice parenting skills; through parent and child together time, to
learn from one another; and from expertsin the community as different.agencies work
together, to practice parenting skills and to learn more effective.parenting skills. And, of
course, in parenting there is a very strong literacy focus through reading programs such
as Mother Read and Book-It, and we have our own lending library in which parents can
check out books and toys and games for their children. They all have library cards; we
go to the library, and the librarian comes and does story hour with us.

And we have found through parenting that we have seen changes in the parents,
who actually at one time did not even know how to play with their children, who will
now play with their children, who read to their children, who eagerly take home books,
and are:really becoming more and more partners in their.child's education.

We also try very hard to offer a-welcoming, supportive environment for these
adult students who come to school. Many of them had very unhappy.school experiences
themselves, and so we feel it is very important to make them realize that they are wanted
and welcome. And because of this, our average attendance rate.for the last 6 years has
been-90 percent-or higher. -Our retention rate, until the-parents have mettheir-goals each
year or beyond that year, has been 85 percent.or higher, also. ‘And we credit this to trying
to meet the students' needs, not trying to fit them into.our perception of what we feel they
should learn, but them telling-us what they want to learn and feel they should learn in
meeting their need.

One of the speakers had mentioned the .area of adult education, and when we first
began 6 years ago, the focus seemed to be in adult education on getting that GED, and
that is what most parents, as they came in, wanted to get. Some, of course, would
probably never get to that point, but we have worked with them on reading and writing
and math, because this is what they :wanted. But within the last 6 years, there have been
many changes made. And one of these is due to-the Welfare-to-Work Program.

‘Over 40 percent of ourstudents now are participating in Welfare-to-Work, and
when they enter-our program,.they .want a job, and they want us to teach-them the
necessary skills in order thatthey might go out and get a job.. And we feel strongly that
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academic skills must be tied in with whatever literacy skills the parents need in their
lives. And so we have worked very hard through the Human Resource Development
Program of our college, through teaching computer skills, through having parents
volunteer in the offices in the school and learning about business machines and
answering telephones. And we have tied in with our academic and parenting skills many
workplace literacy skills in order to meet the continuing needs of our students.

We have served over 200 families in the last 6 years, and of these families, we
have seen many go on to college. We have six who have gone and finished the teacher
trainer in order to be teacher assistants and substitute teachers. We have hired two of
them in our program as a matter of fact. And we also see a ripple effect. These parents
are going out; they are getting jobs; they are earning their GED's. They are attending
PTO meetings; they are attending parent-teacher conferences, and they are referring
family members to us, and they are our best recruiters, as we meet their needs.

And we strongly feel that with many families today that seem to be in crisis, the
problem seems to be in the breakdown of the family unit. For some reason, the parents
are not able any longer to support their children's education, and they are not able to help
out as they should. And so since the problem seems to lie within the families, we feel
strongly that the solution to the problem must also lie within the families. And we feel
that the Even Start Family Literacy Program is a very viable and proven resource for
helping families in our communities.

Thank you.

[The statement of Ms. Bailey follows:]

WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF MS. DAYLE BAILEY, ADULT
EDUCATION/PARENTING EDUCATOR, RICHMOND COUNTY FAMILY
LITERACY PROJECT, ROCKINGHAM, NORTH CAROLINA - SEE APPENDIX E

Chairman Goodling. Ms. Brown.

STATEMENT OF MS. MARY BROWN, PROGRAM SUPERVISOR, EVEN
START FAMILY EDUCATION PROGRAM, OKLAHOMA CITY PUBLIC
SCHOOLS, OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA

Ms. Brown. Thank you. I also would like to say what a privilege it is to be here to speak
to you, again, about Even Start. It was my pleasure several years ago to come and be a
part of a hearing on educational programs that work. And, of course, I believe with all
my heart that Even Start is one of those educational programs that really work.

I would like to say “Amen” to all the wonderful things they have said about their
Even Start programs because all those kinds of wonderful things are also happening in
my Even Start program in Oklahoma City.
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But, specifically, today, I would like to tell you in my testimony what can happen
when Title I and Even Start really work together.

The Oklahoma City Public'Schools Family Literacy Program received Even Start
funds for the legislated limit of 8 years. It was validated as a model program by the U.S.
Department of Education in May 0f.1993. By the end of 8 years, the program had
developed many collaborative partnerships that were vital to its operation, and the in-kind
budget at that time exceeded the grant amount by approximately $72,000. Even with this
degree of success and with so many collaborations, an excellent program would not have
survived without title I support. However, with title I support, the original program
serving approximately 60 families survived and is doing well, and a second Even Start
grant was awarded to our Oklahoma City Public School District to open three new
auxiliary sites. So we now have 4 sites in Oklahoma City serving about 120 to 135
families.

For Even Stari family literacy programs to survive beyond 8 years, I believe there
must be some other consistent, sufficient source of funding available. Since the goals of
Title I and Even Start are so compatible, it seems logical that the two-programs be
supported with funds from the same basic source. Even Start grants that establish family
literacy programs are, after all, funded by Title I, Part B.

Fortunately, at about the same time that the Oklahoma City Public Schools Even
Start had to secure other funding, an article appeared in the third quarter 1996 issue of
Window on the World of Family Literacy, from the National Center, which stated that
“Title I, the largest funding portion from the Elementary and Secondary Act may be the
best untapped source of funding for family literacy programs.” The article titled
“Strengthening the Ties Between the New Title I and Family Literacy” strongly
advocated the use of Title I funds to implement family literacy in public schools. Mary
Jean LeTendre, Director of Compensatory Education Programs at the U.S. Department of
Ed, was quoted as saying, “’Any school that runs a school-wide program does not have to
ask for any kind of permission to run an Even Start program.”

The use of Title I funds to support family literacy programs in elementary schools
would not only make it possible to serve more at-risk families with the kind of intense
educational services needed to break their cycle of under-education and poverty, but Title
I funds would also-make it possible for elementary schools to serve families with children
below mandatory school age and above the age of 7, which is the limit with Even Start
funds.

A longitudinal study conducted by the local evaluator of our Oklahoma City
Public School program indicated that only 19, or approximately one-fourth, of the
original Even Start programs funded in 1989 are still in existence. According to their
replies to a written survey, all of the surviving programs are collocated sites which fully
implement all four components of family literacy. An elementary school located in a
neighborhood with a high population of educationally and economically at-risk families,
i.e., a Title I school-wide program, is an ideal setting for a family literacy program where
all of the elements can function as a whole.

A study of the surveys returned by 12 of the original programs reveals two keys to
their survival: One, Federal or school district funding, which could mean Title I monies;
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and association with an elementary school.

In the previously mentioned article, Mary Jean LeTendre also says, “If I were to
say what I think can be the quintessential leveler of the haves and have-nots, it would be
family literacy.”

In 1989, family literacy was a term which many lawmakers and citizens had never
heard. In 1999, just 10 years later, family literacy has proven itself to be a successful
program with the potential to lift families from poverty to self-sufficiency and to
empower parents to advance their own education and be positively involved in the
education of their children.

A recent report released by the National Center for Family Literacy revealed that
family literacy is included and encouraged in very specific ways in a number of currently
reauthorized acts. These include the William F. Goodling Child Nutrition
Reauthorization Act of 1998, Even Start reauthorization, the Reading Excellence Act,
Head Start reauthorization, Family Literacy Work/Study Waiver, the Adult Education
and Family Literacy Act or title II of the Workforce Investment Act, and Title I
reauthorization. .

The original intent of the Even Start law was to bring together services that
already existed in local communities to provide comprehensive, intensive, holistic
services to families who needed them. The inclusion of family literacy in such positive
ways in all of the above legislation indicates that real collaboration is now occurring at
the Federal as well as the local level. Surely title I should be one of the key participants
in the new family literacy initiative. I am grateful for the sake of many families in
Oklahoma City that our local school administrators though so.

As a member of an Even Start staff for the past 10 years, I have seen the power of
family literacy at work. The importance of a parent in a child's education has been
demonstrated in many powerful ways in our program. Those who have been fortunate
enough to grow up in homes where education was valued by parents should not need
anyone to convince them of the effectiveness of intergenerational intervention.

Only positive things can happen if the use of title I funds, as well as other Federal
funds which impact education, makes it possible to offer more family literacy services to
more children and their parents.

Thank you.

[The statement of Ms. Brown follows:]

WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF MS. MARY BROWN, PROGRAM SUPERVISOR,

EVEN START FAM(LY EDUCATION PROGRAM, OKLAHOMA CITY PUBLIC
SCHOOLS, OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA - SEE APPENDIX F

Chairman Goodling. Sister English.
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STATEMENT OF SISTER BARBARA ANN ENGLISH, NOTRE DAME MISSION
AMERICORP VOLUNTEER PROGRAM,; BALTIMORE, MARYLAND

Sister English. Mr. Chair and Committee Members, I am very happy to be here today to
witness to the success story of Notre Dame AmeriCorp in five places: Boston, San
Francisco, Cincinnati, Apopka, and Baltimore. This is a partnership between National
AmeriCorp and the Sisters of Notre Dame de Namur. We are 4 years old, and we have
done some amazing work in tutoring, after-school programs, community service projects,
and family literacy. We serve families that are Latino migrant families in Apopka,
Florida, a mix of immigrant families in Boston, Latino families in San Francisco, and
urban poor families in Cincinnati and Baltimore.

The special witness I will-offer you today, however, will be more focused on the
work in Baltimore; it-is the work I love and know well.

The story takes place in southeast Baltimore. The date is the early 1990's, and the
scene is very challenging. Nonprofits, community activists, institutions, business and
civic leaders, parents, community association leaders have studied census data and
reflected on trends from the period of 1980 to 1990. We saw terrible things, a 48.5
industrial job loss, a shift in homeownership, an 11 percent vacancy rate, and so on and
so forth. ‘Our area also was, in spite of the fact that it is very mixed in income, was
revealing the level of poverty that are HUD guidelines for the bottom level.

So we rolled up our sleeves and, collectively, we resolved to turn the situation
around. We developed a community plan; it provided recommendations in economic
development, stabilization of housing, and improvement in the quality of life. And I am
happy to say we have raised over $5 million, volunteer community effort behind this.
This is community power.

One of the priority recommendations in that plan was to create and implement a
plan on how to support and strengthen our schools. We recognized that schools are
important anchors in our neighborhoods, and, .unless they are excellent, our residents will
not choose to send their children to them. We also recognized that Baltimore City Public
Schools are under-budgeted and need the support of the entire cominunity if they are to
succeed.

To organize this action, we set up the Southeast Education Task Force. The
Education Task Force, again, is a big mix of everything from nonprofits to parents to
community leaders to principals, teachers, and even a partner with the University of
Maryland College Park. Through dialogue and reflection, we set the course for a school-
community partnership action inthe 16 schools located in southeast Baltimore.

This is the result of our effort: There are 18 recommendations, and we are
working in all of them, at all the time, all 18. None of them will get second-class
citizenship status.

As the year that we set this plan forward progressed, we began the partnership

with the AmeriCorp, and it was perfect timing. In that first year of action, we were able
to send two very struggling schools 10 Americorp members to get things done. They
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tutored children 8 hours a day, Monday through Friday, and they were an amazing grace
for those schools.

Over the years, we have been able to build that base of Americorp members to 29
in Baltimore, and 12 of them are at the Julie Community Center where 1 work. We send
them out to three elementary schools, General Wolfe, City Springs, and Tench Tilghman,
and all of them are involved directly with children, but as a team. Both adults, the
Education Task Force, and the Julie Community Center staff, we concentrate on the
whole family in school success. And this is our special spin on family literacy.

Our strategies are many; [ would like to name a few. AmeriCorp members act as
teacher aides in the classroom and work with children in after-school hours. Their focus
is on reading, and I am happy to say that every single year since we have begun, the
children that our Americorp members tutor have reached one grade level of
improvement, and sometimes two.

We complement their efforts with the children by sending Julie Center instructors
out to help with pre-GED and GED classes and literacy classes. Sometimes those things
happen in the same room at the same time, and most of the time they don't. What is
important is that the whole family is focused on success and learning.

AmeriCorp members work with parents whose children are not on task in school
or whose children are acting out. And through a process of praise and rewards, they
engage those parents and pull them in to support their children in school.

The Julie Center provides parent development work sessions at schools. These
are spinoffs of family literacy, where we work with parents and children in double
sessions and then in separate sessions and pull them together. We read and talk about
and role play. We laugh; we cry; we do photo displays. We produce plays; we sing. We
do everything that it takes to get everybody engaged in the task. We think about these
things: family life, family members, respect for each one, positive communication in the
family, family rules and consequences, even family economic literacy.

Another spinoff is health literacy, where we take people through basic health
problems that they experience and put them in the context where they read about it and
act about it, role play it, and produce very proactive ways of resolving their health
problems.

Another spinoff is Parents with Power, where parents move from oral engagement
around Welfare-to-Work to doing all the things that it takes to make an individual life
plan to get from welfare to actual work.

All these efforts, together, really support and promote family learning and set the
tone for meeting expectations that individuals and families can succeed.

And, finally, I would like to relay some of our future plans around family learning
and school success.

For school year 1999-2000, we are piloting, with the help of AmeriCorp
members, a full-service school at Tench Tilghman Elementary School. This school is
located in the empowerment zone. It is a hot-spot community. It suffers the plight of
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drugs, poverty, and crime. ‘Under the excellent leadership-of Ms. Elizabeth Turner, the
principal, and her dedicated staff, we are pursuing partnerships to provide a full array of
health services, social services, adult education, and employment-services at this school.
AmeriCorp members will be engaged in the many aspects of family literacy through this
effort, as Tench Tilghman reaches out to provide a place of well-being for their families
and a space where school-success happens every day.

That is my testimony.

Thank you for your attention and-for all the support you have given and will
continue to give to educational efforts. Blessings on-each of you.

[The statement of Sister English follows:]

WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF SISTER BARBARA ANN ENGLISH, NOTRE DAME
MISSION AMERICORP VOLUNTEER PROGRAM, BALTIMORE, MARYLAND —
SEE APPENDIX G

Chairman Goodling. Thank you all very much.

T have-one question, and anybody, or all of you, can answer it. I am sure Sharon
probably has something and probably Ms. Bailey and Ms. Brown, particularly.

When we started Even Start, of course everybody said-we wouldn't get any
money, and we didn't know how much-money.we would get, so we said, “Okay, we will
get local districts to participate or local entities to participate and help finance, and we
will have grants. And after 4 years, it can reapply for another grant, and then after that
time, they are finished.” What I heard more than anything else, I guess, at the last
conference was, particularly in rural areas, that they have a very, very difficult time in
getting the financial support because they don't have the businesses in those communities
-and so on.

My hope is to change that to, once you get a grant, you have the grant, and the
only way you can lose it is the Secretary discovers that you are not doing very well with
the money:that is provided.

Dr. Hartman. That is:good.

Chairman Goodling. Now if we do that, what percentage.is a percentage that you
believe.local districts or local communities could addto the support so that we can stretch
those dollars? We are hoping to get 500 million new dollars this year.

{Laughter.]

Stop laughing, I expect you to make sure that that happens.
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[Laughter.]

So, what is your response, Sharon, if you want to start? What is a magic number
that the locals might be able to supply?

Ms. Darling. I think, first of all, Even Start really has done what it was designed to do,
and that is it has brought together other funding sources, and it has done that very
successfully. But at the same time, every community, particularly the rural communities,
needs somebody there whose voice is strictly for family literacy. You know, family
literacy is a part of a lot of other laws now, but somebody needs to keep stirring the pot
and be kind of the beacon for it. So I think it would be important to make sure those
good programs continue on.

I would think that a 25 percent contribution from the Federal level and 75 percent
match, past the 8-year limit, would be something that would keep that alive in the
communities, and still not take the pressure off of States to put State dollars in, not take
the pressure off of the Title I, and not take the pressure off of adult education.

What I would not want to see is kind of, “Well, we are going to check that off
because Even Start is doing it.” You know, it really has a role and needs all of those
funding sources. So, I would think 25 percent at a minimum.

Chairman Goodling Thank you.

Ms. Keenan. I would like to weigh in on that, from a Pennsylvania perspective.

We do agree with you that that 8-year rule is very ambiguous and very difficult to
implement and puts a burden on some of our needier communities, and certainly is
particularly burdensome in our rural areas.

In looking at the match issue, preliminarily, we believe that we should keep it at
about a 50-percent match requirement. We think that for our most needy communities,
that is a match that they can deal with and sustain. They currently do that, and we think
that the 8-year rule should be removed and that the match requirement should be about 50
percent.

Dr. Hartman. Congressman, could I just make one comment? It is not really about the
match, but it might be something to consider as the middle ground.

I was at the meeting in Louisville with you and your colleagues, and this has been
an issue from almost day one, that came up, as you know, as soon as the first 4-year
limits came up. When you changed it to 8 years, I was still working on the Committee.

The only thing I would say about having it be, “if you got a grant, that you would
have it unless you do something wrong,” is I think that the fact of the reviews have --
first, I think it has been a positive element, and while not having us, say, an 8-year limit
that you couldn't even reapply, but having some kind of proactive regular time when
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programs that have gone beyond 8 years are evaluated, personally, I think it would be
important.

So, I think we have seen that in-Head Start, that if you wait for people to commit a

. crime before you talk about taking their money away, things can slip quite a bit. I think

what has kept, frankly, Even Start onits toes, and as an intelligently:growing field, is that
there is this sort of this competitiveness in the sense that you have got to be good. And I
think if you take this away, it becomes a formula program, essentially. You would learn
that edge, and I don't think we have the:model, the knowledge, yet to do that,:personally.

I think creating some tension in the program, while allowing people to.go on
beyond 8 years -- because I agree with that -- but creating and continuing some kind of
need for people to, on some kind of regular basis, and not maybe as often as 4 years even,
of re-explaining what they are doing and showing their data, and the State saying, “Yes,
in your area, you still are the best person.” . think that has been actually a positive thing,
and I would hate to lose that element.

Chairman Goodling. Ms. Brown?

- Ms. Brown. I was going to briefly tell you the history of what happened in Oklahoma

O

City-because I think it addresses this. We appreciate it so much, the extension to.8 years.
What has happened at the end of 8 years is that our collaboration with Title I has allowed
areally fine program to continue. And then the reapplication to'open new programs - in
other words, the new money that.came into Oklahoma City 2 years ago does not support
the original in any way. "What it did was expand the number of families that-could take
advantage of Even Start services, and it enabled us to open sites in other portions of the
city.. It enabled us to serve all the ethnic-populations in the city.

The other point [ would like to make is that-when we reapplied for that new grant
to open new programs, our match was already 50 percent. Do you see what I am saying?
And the in-kind contribution for our new grant in its third year application was $373, and
the grant is $253. '

I am saying that I agree so much with Andy. You do need to look, I think, at
some kind of evaluation, you know. You have got to.be good to continue. In fact, I think
that should be the emphasis all along, because whatever the program is, there are going to
be some not so good and some good. So that is'a really good evaluation process, but
then, you know, I.am not sure that one-size-fits-all. That has been one of the wonderful
things about Even Start, that a-program can be a different design here and there, that as
long as'you are really getting tremendous support from the local community, as long as

the need is there, that just maybe look at it on.somewhat of an individual basis. 'Even our

original site now that is funded with Title I funds, we still run.it in the same sort of way
in my mind. In other words, those Title I funds don't totally support that program. We

-still have the same amount of in-kind going to that title I-funded Even Start site, as we

did before it got Title I funds.

‘Chairman-Goodling. Okay. Mr. Kildee.
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Mr. Kildee. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Goodling. After Mr. Kildee, I believe we have a vote so we will have to go
and come back. ’

Mr. Kildee. First of all, I appreciate Ms. Darling's statement about Mr. Goodling. There
is no question that the father of Even Start is Bill Goodling. He was a voice crying in the
wilderness, and he really made that a consuetude for the rest of us. He will leave many
legacies here, but one of his finest legacies is Even Start, and 1 really appreciate all of you
testifying to that this morning.

Let me ask you this one question: As with many programs serving the highly
disadvantaged, very often there is a problem of attendance and retention. How can
attendance and retention rates be improved in the Even Start Program? And has the
welfare reform helped or hindered in the effort to increase attendance and retention?

Ms. Darling. We have been keeping up with a lot of those statistics, and so I can speak
to that; all of adult education programs generally have a problem with retention, and it
has been a big challenge for adult education programs.

What we found in family literacy programs and in Even Start programs is that that
retention rate has dramatically increased. And I think you heard here that, you know, 85
percent retention rate as opposed to maybe 40 percent retention rate in regular adult
education programs. So we know that we are onto something, that when it is a
comprehensive program, when children are involved with their parents that they attend
more regularly and they stay with the program longer. So I think recruitment and
retention really revolves a lot around the comprehensiveness of the program when it is
well implemented, when it is high quality, and that comes through training and technical
assistance, helping teachers learn a new way of working with families and not individual
family members.

The welfare reform, from our perspective -- originally programs were, you know,
weeping and gnashing their teeth and saying people can't come to programs anymore
because of they have to go to work. Welfare reform has really encouraged people to
come into programs. You know, we have people with a new urgency saying, “I am going
to have to go to work and I don't want to go into the jobs that I am qualified for. 1 want
to get something more for my family.”

But family literacy programs have been successful in adapting to those changes.
They have been operating where a parent comes to class 2.5 days a week maybe with
their children, and the other 2.5 days they are in the workplace. They have been working
with after-school programs and brown bag suppers, where parents actually come with
their children after a day of work. Family literacy has a lot to contribute to welfare
reform because it strengthens the second generation as well, and not put a child in a
warchouse somewhere while mom goes to a minimum wage job, but says we really are
concerned about what is going to happen in the family and how parents can support

28.
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children.

So I think it is a wonderful platform for welfare reform. I think it is underutilized.
Some Governors are seeing it as such. The Kentucky Governor, for example, just put $1
million of surplus TANIF money into family literacy, as did Maryland's Governor, and
we see a lot of that in Washington State, as well.

So I think it has created a sense of urgency in some of the parents who are coming
back. They are desperate; they are scared that they are going to have to go into
something that they don't understand.

But the real issue is going to be, how do we make sure these parents keep the
jobs? If they have never had an alarm clock in their home, they have never seen anybody
who worked, how can family literacy play a role to help them come back and.debrief
about what happened on the job? How can it play a role to help them move forward so
that they can get a wage that will support their children?

I would like to say that I think the welfare reform has,"when the shoe drops and
the economy takes a turn for the worse if that ever happens -- we are going to have a lot

of families out there that we need to-invest in right now with family literacy programs, so
we can be sure that they are successful in the future.

Chairman Goodling. I asked Mr. Schaffer to run over and vote quickly so that he can
continue, so as fast as anybody can come back.

Mr. Kildee. I want to just.thank all the witnesses. This is like getting a Ph.D. in family
literacy listening to people like Andy Hartman and the rest.of the witnesses. I appreciate
it, your commitment very much.

Chairman Goodling. We taught him everything he knows.
Mr. Kildee. Your program is great.
Chairman Goodling. We taught him everything he knows.

Mr. Kildee. That is right.
[Laughter.]
We did.

[Laughter.]
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Dr. Hartman. It is great to see you again, Mr. Kildee; thanks.

Chairman Goodling. If you will wait, we will be back to continue quickly.

[Recess.]

Mr Schaffer. [presiding] Could the Committee come back to order. Until the Chairman
comes back, I will stand in as Chairman. That will allows us to go ahead and get some
more questions and answers on the record. I will recognize the gentleman from
Massachusetts. Mr. Tierney.

Mr. Tierney. Thank you.

First of all, I want to thank all of you for your testimony here today; it has been
very helpful.

Let me ask anybody who might feel qualified to answer this. In situations where
we have programs in the workplace for adult literacy -- and we are finding now that there
are a lot of corporations not buying other corporations, and we get a little removed from
community involvement. And I had one particular case in mind in my district, where all
of a sudden they are no longer able to run programs where people might come an hour
before work and get paid for that hour, the first hour of work continue in the program and
get paid for that. And now we are having companies give us word from wherever else
they might be that that is not going to happen anymore.

How do we encourage those individuals who are now working anywhere from 50
to 55 hours a week, including the overtime, because certainly the company is not going to
hire anybody else and pay them any benefits or whatever? It is all about squeezing
everything they can. How do we encourage or make it possible for those people to get
into a program and stay in a program?

Dr. Hartman. Let me start, and then we will just probably go to the real experts on this
as well.

I think generally what people have found with workplace programs is, you know,
you hit it on the head in terms of time; time is a huge issue. You think about kids and
work and all that, and I think about myself going home and then starting school. So.
making it accessible, and there is a couple ways that seems to have a positive impact on
participation. Doing it at work, which, you know, sometimes employers have some
concerns about, you know, but doing it at work is very important.

Another thing that people have looked at and used is technology, so people can do
it at home, or at least take part of it home with them.

Mr. Tierney. Though the problem is that most of these, they can't use the technology.
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Dr. Hartman. Right; it does depend. Now some programs, whether itis in.a school

-program or a workplace program, they are giving people laptops, for example, to take

home after they have used them in the program and have been'shown.how to use them.
So there-are people who are trying to get around that. Or, simply video-tapes, and most

- homes do have VCR's now,.and so there are some excellent videotaped programs that

actually several State directors and the U.S. Department of Education have created some

. programs on videotape that aren't standalone, but can reinforce that and just.create that

contact time.

Cheryl Keenan kind of chuckled when you said that. For workplace situations
just creating the opportunity is important.

The other part of it you sort of touched on is, is there was an article in The
Washington Post business section of a report by a manufacturing.organization that did a
survey, and what they found was that there have been, over the last several years,
increased numbers of job applicants coming to work who-don't meet the basic skills
screening for the jobs. That is what employers are reporting. They are going deeper into
the job pool. However, what they also find is actually lessbasic skills and instruction
being supported by the employers at the same time.

Mr. Tierney. You know, it is very simple; what you have is the parent company now
has 10 divisions, and they have them compete. So they don't make the decisions, say, at
the other end.of the country that'you have to get rid of your literacy program. They just
say you have to get your production numbers up and your costs down. So all of a sudden,
they are not going to let you work a 40-hour week or 45; now they need to put you in the
55 hours, and they are not going to pay for that offset in time. And then the company

- will turn around and say, “Well, we are willing to support a program financially because

we can spend a few bucks. It is the time off the line that we don't want to let these people
have.”

So I guess what I am asking is, can somebody help us with creativity and say, to
this company, “All right, here is what you have to do to make up for that?”

Ms. Keenan. Yes, I would like to address that.

What we are talking about specifically now are workplace education programs,
and many of those programs are partnerships-between education providers and
businesses, and the instruction is very highly targeted to workplace skills, kind of
customized.

Mr. Tierney. Actually, this was.actually a literacy program, and the number that we are
talking about are strictly literacy programs where people are working, but they have been
doing jobs that didn't require a great deal of literacy skills.

Ms. Keenan. Yes.
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Mr. Tierney. Now the job is changing.

Ms. Keenan. So what really happens with the programs is that time on the clock is what
we are talking about, has been one of the most effective ways to engage businesses in
kind of buying in ar.: valuing the program. And when time on the clock goes away, what
do you do?

To me, one of the things that needs to happen is that if you are talking about a
merger and you are talking about different leadership in an organization, there is a
reeducation that needs to occur, because someone, somewhere, is not making the
connection that productivity and profits are connected to the literacy levels, and that
reeducation needs to start again. I really do believe that time on the clock is a very
important thing for a successful program because it does give you the buy-in.

The other piece of it is, is that, interestingly, as I talk to family literacy workplace
literacy providers, folks that have been engaged in that business for a long time do extend
the benefits to family. I mean, we often think of the workplace as one thing and family
literacy as quite another thing, but people who have been involved in the workplace
business really do talk about the values that they see extended into the family, being able
to manage children's health issues, school issues, and things like that.

Mr. Tierney. Well, again, the sad part of that is, is that these are the same managers in
place. The difference is that they have now sold out their position, and, you know, it is
the constraints of the productivity demands and the restraint of costs that force these same
people to make a different decision.

So we don't have any answers, basically?

Okay. Thank you.

Chairman Goodling. [presiding] Mr. Kucinich, you had an unanimous consent
request?

Mr. Kucinich. Yes, sir. I ask unanimous consent to have my statement included in the
record.

Thank yoﬁ.

Chairman Goodling Yes.

(The statement of Mr. Kucinich follows:]

WRITTEN STATEMENT OF REPRESENTATIVE DENNIS KUCINICH,
COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND THE WORKFORCE, U.S. HOUSE OF
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REPRESENTATIVES, WASHINGTON, DC - SEE APPENDIX H
Chairman Goodling. Mr.: Schaffer.

Mr. Schaffer. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

First of all, Mr. DeMint had to leave and asked me to raise-a question and get the
answer on the record. And I would like to direct that to Sister English, and that is with
respect.to the:participation of Even Start of faith-based organizations.

To what extent does their participation entail a compromise of your evangelical
-mission and your ministry objectives-as an order? -

‘Sister English. I feel there is no-compromise. The basic gospel value of abundance of
life for all is the one that I would fall back on.and say.that, in order to have abundance of
life, everyone needs to function at their highest-capacity. So there is no compromise at
all.

Mr Schaffer. Are-there any.limitations or anything that would somehow prevent faith-
based organizations from participating in the Even Start program?

Sister English. I believe.not. The proselytization that often gets hooked in with religion,
of course, would not be:allowed, and that is fine; it shouldn't be.

Mr Schaffer. Ms. Brown?

Ms.-Brown. Two of our Even Start programs in Oklahoma City are located in area
churches. I think the ideal location for an Even Start program is in an elementary school,
it is a wonderful site, but many times, the school cannot accommodate that program, nd
so when we opened our new sites, we looked to the nearest place to the school, and there
-were churches. It has.been a wonderful collaboration. We pay very minimum; we just
pay what it costs to.heat and cool those buildings. And churches have wonderful early-
childhood facilities and this kind: of thing, and we have had'no problem whatsoever. The
churches have felt that it was a minister to the community. It has just been a really
wonderful situation. Many churches are interested in social issues, as well as spiritual
issues. I think, as Sister said, you don't proselyte, but the-very fact that this program
exists in a church does carry a message to the participants who come there. Itis a very
safe place for many of them to come, so that is one of the things that has happened with
our new sites. And I have talked to one or two other places who have sites in churches,
-and it has been a very happy experience.
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Mr Schaffer. Thank you; I am sure Mr. DeMint will appreciate your responses, as I
have.

Sister English. And another thing, just in the afterthought. We have a church
partnership. It is called the Church Outreach Partnership, and they engage many of their
congregants in tutoring children in after-school hours. ’

Ms. Brown. And I should have mentioned that. Many of the people in these two
churches are involved in our programs in various ways.

MrSchaffer. That is great.

I want to-get to the matter of accountability in the evaluations that have occurred
with the Even Start over the years, at least since 1989 I presume, is when children started
getting enrolled. Dr. Hartman, you mentioned a little earlier that the new evaluation is
going to give us much more information than we have had in the past, but I guess I want
to speak to the money we have spent over the last few years-and whether we know the
extent to which Even Start has helped improve the rate of literacy.

You get-a certain picture by tracking cohorts of students as they improve in their
reading abilities and their academic success, but without a baseline or a control group, it
is difficult to assign any cause or determining cause and effect relationship. There may
be a whole assortment of things that helped.

Can you speak to that? Do we have any indication that there is a cause and effect
relationship in the improvement of kids in any, you know, other than the anecdotal
evidence? It just seems that this makes sense, and it ought to beplain and obvious that
the dollars spent help children, but how do we prove. that? ’

Dr. Hartman. There have been I think, as I mentioned, three ways or three actually
distinct phases of an evaluation. I think they have been related actually to three separate
contracts with people to carry them out.

And the first one that Abt Associates, which is an area firm, carried out, that you
did have was kind of in retrospective. It was small, but actually a control group built into
a larger kind of collection of universe data from all the sites and all the programs. 1am
sure everybody has been involved in that kind of national -- it was.a smaller actual group
of programs that did actually have a fairly carefut contro] set of programs and families
matched to them. :

And in the second phase -- and I can get back to you on this -- there was nota
contro] group compenent, and I am not sure-why.

And now in the third, which is actually out for data collection right now, there is,
in fact, a much stronger and more robust, and I think a very exciting set of results,
because it is a very big control group with scientifically-developed methodology and
design. So that data is probably about a year from becoming kind of public to the
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Committee..
Mr Schaffer. What is the time span of the study?

Dr. Hartman. They have been covering about 3-year periods for each. Going back
though to the first evaluation that did have the control groups, it was when the program
was getting underway, so I think it is going to be real interesting to see the more recent
one. :

But, as | mentioned, the results for children were positive. For parents in terms of
getting GED's was actually very positive; 6 percent of the adults, for example, in the
control group got a GED, and 23 percent of the adults in the Even State programs did. So
that is quite significant. You can't rule out every single, possible other cause, but there
was a very careful control group assigned to it, so they believe from the scientific
evidence that Even Start did have that impact.

What they didn't find - and then there were also changes found in the home —
were more reading materials, more reading activities, going to the library, and those kinds
of things. The one piece that I was pointed to that really they didn't see the change -
they did see some improvement in the adult, but they also saw it in the control group, so
there didn't seem to be anything attributable to Even Start. It was the impact of
particularly low level literacy adults, and they were who weren't going to geta GED. I
think someone else mentioned, for some adults, the GED is going to be a long, long
process and maybe not the appropriate goal even. For those adults, there was not a clear
gain in literacy skills attributable to the Even Start program. And I think that is an area of
focus that has already going on that we need to do more in.

Sharon, I know, wanted to say something real quick.

Ms. Darling. 1 think in that study and a study prior to that -- the very first study — that
they showed just the opposite, and that was those who made the most gains were those at
the bottom-end of the literacy continuum, and they made the most rapid gains in the first
40 hours of instructicni. So, the conclusion there was that it reached the hardest to serve
and did a better job with them than we traditionally have accomplished.

In our research at the National Center for Family Literacy, we have been
researching Even Start programs, as well as programs funded from other funding sources.
And we really did look at a control group early on, looking at short-term gains. We
compared to Head Start programs that had the same socioeconomic levels. We used the
same instrument, and we used a Head Start base for family literacy programs. So we
looked to see, did it make a difference if parents came with their children in a Head Start
program, as opposed to just a Head Start program, which is indicative of the family
literacy approach?

Mr Schaffer. Let me get one more comment in before that light turns red and that is,
within the current fiscal year, we have budgeted $135 million for the Even Start program.
The latest numbers we have is that we serve 31,500 families around the country. The
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Congressional Research Service has concluded that the total cost per family is about
$4,438, and I am not sure of the time period that covers. My question is this, is there
some way we can help more families for the same expenditures, and that we just be more
efficient?

Ms. Brown. Iam n:t an evaluator; [ am the director of a local prugram. One of the
things that I did with the monies is look to see what it cost for a child to be in the public
schools, and in Oklahoma City, I think it is more than $4,000 per individual. So I really
think that when you bring in collaboration money, that that money already -- I think this
is a point -- has been allocated. All of the collaborations that we have made, all of the
money that I have added to the Even Start funds, already was money allocated. In other
words, it was going to be spent some way, but we brought it together so that it served
families in a very holistic way.

One of the comments that I was-going to make before you mentioned specific
dollars was that evaluation is a challenge no matter what. When you are talking family
literacy, you are talking about evaluating things that are almost non-evaluatable in a way
also. One of the things that has helped me in my local program -- the national evaluation
has been wonderful and has given wonderful information — is my local evaluator. One of
the things that the Even Start legislation requires is that you have a local evaluator. A
local evaluator is able to look at some of those other things and see them and measure
them; the qualitative and not just the quantitative analysis.

It is very difficult to know how to get that information to those of you who make
the policy. Of course, when I was here before and testified on educational programs that
work, one of the wonderful things about that day was that a young father presented his
testimony. One of the resolves that I have made with my Even Start program is to get my
clients, my families who have really experienced Even Start to write letters to those of
you who sit in these kinds of places, because you really are trying to do so much more.
You know, adult education is a wonderful standalone program. There are many
wonderful preschool standalone programs. Head Start has been a wonderful program.
One of the exciting things that our local evaluation showed, and it is not a lot of children
because it is just one program, but we now have children from our program in fourth and
fifth grades and they are still outstripping their peers. .

Now, the control group there has simply been the students in those same schools,
but they are Title I schools; they are schools with at-risk population who weren't in Even
Start. Whereas I think the traditional evaluation has shown that, you know, when only
the child is intervened with, eventually they lose it because they are going back to that
home situation where there has not been an intervention, where the parents' attitude
toward education has not changed, where the parent has not realized that that is his or her
responsibility; that they are the first teachers of their children. Parents as Teachers is one
of the collaborators with my program. They provide the home visits, but it is such an
intensive -- I often say that we do -- our.tasks in Even Start is impossible. When you
really look at-a family who has been disadvantaged for a lot of years, who, in the case of
many of my families, can't speak any English, you think, well, you know, in a short
period of time. But if you really do, I think, intensive services -- and the other wonderful
thing about Even Start is that you don't have to throw them out after 1 year or a certain
period of time. You intervene; you do what you can with the families that you can reach,
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and then, hopefully, more and more.

But the other thing about it, before us is set an impossible task, yet we do an
amazing job. And you almost just have to visit local programs, talk to people, and then
you will begin to see. Your question a while ago about the evangelical involvement,
Even Start is almost its own evangelical organization in a sense. The people who have
really benefited from local programs are very evangelical about their participation, and
they tell other people. In fact, I have often said, as a Christian, wouldn't it be wonderful
if the people in my church were as excited about telling other people about Christ, as the
people in my Even Start program are about telling other people about Even Start. And I
think that is a real test of the value of a program when people's lives, I mean their total
lives, are changed, and it is something that I really believe will show up years and years
and years from now. It is not the short fix; it is not the quick fix, but eventually, we will
see a tremendous difference.

Chairman Goodling. Mr. Wu.

Mr. Wu. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I just wanted to ask one quick followup. 1 think that I have an idea of where the
answer is going to go, but I wanted to make sure that we gave Ms. Darling -- because she
was moving toward a comparison of where parents are involved versus a control group
where parents are not involved, and both groups of children have some form of
intervention. And I was hanging for the conclusion of that result and I don't t.hmk we
quite let you get that far. I would like to hear the end of that, please.

Ms. Darling. Thank you; I appreciate that.

We have been studying over time parents and children and also looking at them
compared to programs where their parents did not come with them. And what we found
is in the short term, when parents accompany their children to school, they do much
better, that they gain more rapidly in preschool programs, compared to the exact
programs where pareuts are not a part of their children's education.

We also looked at adults in adult programs and looked at their gains in family
literacy programs, as compared to adults in programs where they are not accompanied by
their children and where they don't have those comprehensive services. And the results
are dramatic. There is a significant difference in gains as well as attendance and retention
for adults. There is a significant gain for children.

We also found that the spiral that started upward continued upward. For example,
in the Rochester study, we looked at the children who came in as three-and four-year-
olds; only 20 percent of them were above the 20th percentile when they came in as
children on a vocabulary test. When they were in third grade, 88 percent were at or
above grade level in reading and math.

And Rochester has been doing a study comparing family literacy students to other
students who come from similar circumstances, in terms of education of the parent, as
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well as economic situations, and what they found was significant. And so they have
invested a lot more and have expanded their family literacy programs to 15 when they
were just 3 because they feel like that is the best early childhood intervention for these
children.

So we have a lot of results. 1 mean we didn't just look at Even Start. And I think
one of the problems in the beginning with Even Start evaluation is it takes a long time to
implement this program. It is not something that teachers have been trained to do. Itis
not something that community understands right away. So it takes a little bit of time to
get those programs fully developed.

So we went in to look at programs that, you know, we thought had the four
components in place. Some of the statistics Andy was talking about earlier; I mean those
programs only had maybe an hour of adult education a month because they really didn't
fully understand the intent of the law, and it has taken some time, some teacher training,
some staff development, and technical assistance to get programs to fully implement.

So I think the next evaluation is going to tell quite a different tale.

Thank you.

Mr. Wu. Thank you very much, and thank you, Mr.-Chairman.

One of the reasons why I might be looking back toward the back with some
concem is my family just joined me from Oregon last week, and we left many of my 22-
months-old's books back in Oregon and as I was listening to this, I was thinking I am not
setting a good example. He is picking up the phone and talking into it, but I am not
showing him enough examples of reading.

[Laughter.]

Thank you very much. We are going to remedy that tonight.

[Laughter.]
Ms. Darling. Good for you.
Chairman Goodling. Mr. Ford.

Mr. Ford. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I only want to echo what one of the last panelists commented about. .
Yes, ma'am, I think it was you. You were talking about some of the success

stories and how you were hoping that perhaps some folks in church would do the same
thing.
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I'am from Memphis, Tennessee, and my State has 25 Even Start sites. And there
is a young lady in my district, interestingly enough, I met just the day before yesterday,
speaking at a school, which also serves as an Even Start program site -- the Locke
Elementary School.

I won't take long, Mr. Chairman. I just want to read her three sentences -- Tracey
Bowland -- which I think is a great followup to what you just said.

When asked of her opinion of Even Start, Ms. Bowland explained, “I have made a
tremendous change in my life over the past 3 years, and Even Start has helped me to
become a successful and independent person. I have been given the opportunity to work
for Memphis City Schools and help other parents in the program reach for success. I feel
better about myself and my life because I don't have to depend on the Government for
assistance.” :

This Congress is so concemed with people leaning and depending on public
assistance; this clearly is a program that helps move people from the margins to the
mainstream or from the outside to the inside.

So I appreciate your comments, and I look forward to working with all my
colleagues here on the Committee in doing all that we can to help you make a difference
and others in my city and district to make a difference in the lives of not only Tracey
Bowland but thousands of others throughout the Nation.

Ms. Brown. We think of Even Start as an educational program, but Even Start is so
much more than that. One of the things that I am not sure the evaluation addresses, for
instance, child abuse in families where Even Start has been an intervention. One of the
first comments that we get from parents is that, “I don't have to hit my children anymore.
I have learned ways to deal with them.”

The parenting component of Even Start is something that just absolutely must not
be overlooked. And all of those other wide range of results that come from participation
in Even Start programs, self esteem, feeling like you are somebedy, and enabling you to
pass along those kinds of values to your children, and this sort of thing. We haven't even
mentioned that whole area here; we have been thinking so educationally, which is
wonderful; that is necessary, too. But there is so many other ways that an Even Start
program impacts a family in positive ways. :

Mr. Ford. Mr. Chairman, I hope you don't mind if I also submit a written statement for
the record as well, if that is okay. :
I'yield back the balance of my time.

[The statement of Mr. Ford follows:)

WRITTEN STATEMENT OF REPREéENTATIVE HAROLD FORD, COMMITTEE
ON EDUCATION AND THE WORKFORCE, U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
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WASHINGTON, DC - SEE APPENDIX 1
Chairman Goodling. Mr. Kind.

Mr. Kind. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Am I batting cleanup today? Maybe so.

Well, 1, too, want to welcome the witnesses.and thank you for your testimony
here today and your patience.

1also want to compliment the Chairman for his leadership on this issue.
wholeheartedly and enthusiastically support the Even Start program. We have some neat
things occurring back in the State of Wisconsin that I am very excited about.

But there are two areas that I feel are running into some shortfalls, and they were
touched upon briefly by the panels. I was hoping you could expand upon these points.
Ms. Darling, you indicated the impact family literacy programs are having on Native
American communities and the outreach being done there. I wonder if you could just
amplify that a little bit more, and tell us if you have an oplmon as to whether enough is
being done. Is there enough outreach and effective programming being done with the
tribes across the country? In Wisconsin at least, this is one of the shortfalls that I have
noticed in regards to the program.

Ms. Darling. We have been involved with family literacy on Native American
reservations since 1991. And it has been the most powerful program that we, out of all
the programs we are working with in the 50 States, have seen to date. It fits very well
with the Native American population because of the richness of their culture. And
parents are saying to us, youknow, “You are acknowledging the fact that I have
something to share with my child and teach my child.” The children are coming
sometimes at such a disadvantage when they come to these family literacy programs.
Their parents have just more or less given up on life; nothing can change for them. We
have seen dramatic differences.

We've had an outside evaluator on these projects from the very beginning; the
evaluations are funded by the Bureau of Indian Affairs. It is called a FACE program.
They have invested in adequate staff development to make these programs work, and 1
really think, and they believe, and the other tribes believe, that if we could spread family
literacy to everyone of the BIA schools in this Nation, that we could really make a
substannal ‘difference in that population.

Mr. Kind. Yes, I don't question the effectiveness of the program; you don't have to sell
me on that. I guess my question goes to whether enough is being dune, if there ares
enough resources getting out to the Native American community?
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Ms. Darling. That is the point; I think there are only 22 programs on Native American
reservations, and yet every year, all of the tribal leaders are saying, “We need this
program,” and there is no money to expand it. There are just absolutely no resources, and
so there is not enough that is being done. I mean we need t6 expand this concept. It
works; we have tested it out in that culture and that population, but, one of the
recommendations I made was to take right now the money in Even Start is to set aside for
migrant and Native American populations.

Mr. Kind. Right.

Ms. Darling. But it is operated out of the Even Start Department of Education, where
over here, the Bureau of Indian Affairs is operatmg all of these other famlly hteracy
programs that are highly eﬂ'ectlve

They, for Title I dollars, are treated as a State agency, and they write a State plan,
and then they determine how to disburse the resources. They need to do thé same thing
for the Even Start dollars, so that they can look at where they already have strong
programs and where programs are needed.

Mr. Kind. Right.

Ms. Darling. But, you know, increasing resources for this approach for Native American
populations is critical.

Mr. Kind. Let me raise the other area of concern -- I will just open it up for the general
panel and anyone who wahts to fespond to it -- and that is the challenges we face in rural
America. And I believe one of you indicated that one of the keys of success of
implementing effective programs in rural areas is having a point person, someone who is
willing to go to bat and really make this a community issue. That is a constant struggle
we have, especially when it comes to the competitive discretionary grant process back in
the State. It’s hard for rural school districts to really be able to access this type of
funding in order to get these programs up and going. In Wisconsin, rural America has
really been taking it on the chin, particularly with the crisis on the farm, since the
agricultural community has a direct impact on property tax roles and in local school
districts. Thisisa program I feel is madequately getting to rural children right now or to
families. )

Does anyone care to respond with any observations or any recommendations that
you might have on how we can better serve rural needs?

Ms. Keenan. With Pennsylvania being the largest rural State in the country, I think
maybe I should try to attempt to answer that.

When we were fortunate enough to get a substantial increase in State funds and
leverage it against Even Start, the rural counties, of course, were a major priority to us.

41

Q .

RIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

37

And, you know, when you talk about competitiveness, I think that there needs to be some
planning and foresight on the part of the State, really, in terms of structuring these grant
opportunities so-that rural folks are eligible and can meet the criteria.

We have done that in Pennsylvania by putting in non-duplication-and putting in
incentives for establishing programs in new areas where they don't exist already, so that
rural folks can come in and not be put into the pot with a lot of areas that are very rich
with resources.

The other thing I think that it comes down to, and as we testified earlier, is the
match issue and the 8-year rule around the partnership. They are-two very strong barriers
against rural participation. Oftentimes, what we are finding is that the models that we
have to fund in rural areas, you know, for instance, there is a proliferation of center-based
early childhood services such as Head Start. There are a lot of home-based components,
and we have to look at rural areas a little bit more differently in how we look at their
applications in the competitive grant process and make sure that that grant process
provides for the needs of rural areas so that they can compete. And then, again, I:think
one of the largest issues is the match issue. I think that when you get up there around 75
percent matches, it is very, very difficult for some of the rural areas to compete. That and
the 8-year rule are the major things.

Mr. Kind. Let me just conclude by asking if any of you know whether any of the
comprehensive school reform grant money is being used to access Even Start
programming?

-‘Ms. Darling. We were really disappointed that we submitted family literacy evidence of

- effectiveness to be included in the book, so to speak, for.comprehensive school reform,

and they wrote back a letter saying that they did not-want to consider anything beyond the
confounds of K-6 as whole school reform. So I think it is really important that we take a
look at that.

Mr. Kind. Okay.

Ms. Darling. ‘Because it sends that message, again, to Title I, that you can fix it in this
classroom with these 30 chairs, and we keep reinforcing that, so I appreciate that
question. We are working hard on it.

Dr. Hartman. IfI could just look back a second. Mr. Schaffer asked a question about
cost, and if | remember correctly from studying the evaluations for the testimony, the
average cost of the Even Start programs in rural areas is on average higher. While he was
talking about averages, actually the range is very large, from $1,000 to $6,000, and one
way a program keeps the cost down is they work with existing programs. They get their
early childhood - and in the rural area, there is just less there. I mean in New York City,
there is adult education program every five or six blocks. In rural areas, there may be 15
miles in some areas before there is an adult ed. program, so some rural programs have to
actually use the Even Start dollars to actually create some of the component services that
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'you just don't see in the city.

So, if cost limitations gets to be an issue -- and I don't know if it will -- the rural
situation would be important there.

If T could just get something on the record, Mr. Chairman, I think it is important
to note that the average cost per participant in the Even Start programs now is half of
what it was 1989. There has been a steady decline in the average cost per student. As
programs have figured this out -- I think Sharon made a good point —-they figured it out
they could create better collaborations; they are using other partners, and the Federal cost
for Even Start has been declining for 10 years. We don't know whether that will continue
or not. At some point, I imagine it will plateau, but I think Mr. Schaffer raised an issue
about cost, and it is important to know that a few programs are working more efficiently
and smarter than they have been ever before.

Mr. Kind. Thank you.

Thank you all. Thank yéu, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Goodling. Any other questions or comments?

We want to congratulate Ms. Bailey. I understand you were a Teacher of the
Year this year.
Ms. Bailey. Thank you very much.

[Applause.]

Chairman Goodling. We certainly congratulate you.

[Applause.)

I'had to laugh. I don't know whether it was Ms. Bailey or Ms. Brown who said it,
but you said, “Now that you can use Ttitle | money,” and I had to laugh because that is
the only way I got it started 31 years ago, I guess; using Chapter I money.

We thank you very much for your testimony. If you have any suggestions as we
go through this reauthorization of Title I, be sure we get your input because we’ve gotto
put it together some time this year.

Thank you.

[Whereupon, at 12:30 p.m., the Committee was adjourned.]
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Opening Remarks
THE HONORABLE BILL GOODLING
Hearing on
EVEN START AND FAMILY LITERACY PROGRAMS

May 12, 1999

Since I first came to Congress 25 years ago, I have looked for ways to
improve the literacy skills of our Nation. Today’s hearing will focus on
what 1 consider to be the solution to the illiteracy problems-facing our
nation: family literacy programs. In pérticular,'this hearing will focus on the
Even Start Family Literacy Program which I developed over a decade ago.

Family literacy programs are unique in that they work on building the

literacy skills of children and their parents at the same time." As a parent and

educator, I can tell you that in most instances the academic success of the
child is strongly related to the ability .of their parents to support their
education.

During my experience as an educator, I saw very quickly that those
individuals who did not do well in school, and who left with poor literacy
skills, had a difficult time obtaining a good job. 1 also noticed that the
children of those students who left school without a good education were
having difficulty in school, particularly in learning to read.
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As a Superintendent of Schools, I worked with one of my best
teachers to develop a program that worked with the parents of these children
to raise their academic skills at the same time we were helping their
children. Even Start was an outgrowth of this experience. In fact, two of
today’s witnesses, Dr. Andy Hartman and Sharon Darling, were instrumental
in helping me craft the Even Start legislation.

Over the years, the success of Even Start in raising the literacy levels
of program participants, not to mention their quality of life, has led to the
inc;lusion of family literacy program as a use of funds in a variety of
education programs. For example, Title 1, adult education, bilingﬁal and
immigrant education, migrant education, Indian education and the Reading
Excellence Act all provide for family literacy services.

I believe our quest for a literate society haé come a long way and I
believe family literacy programs share the credit for moving us closer to this
goal.

I look forward to hearing from today’s witnesses as to how we can
further improve family literacy programs and help insure each child and

adult has the high level of literacy they need to be productive citizens.
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*Statement of Ms. Sharon Darling
National Center for Family Literacy -
Louisville, Kentucky

Committee ori Education and the Workforce
United States House of Representatives

Hearing on the Elementary, and Secondary. Education Act ..
Wednesday, May 12, 1999
Washington, DC

Good morning Chairman Goodling and members of the Committee. My name is Sharon
Darling. I am the President and Founder of the National Center for Family Literacy
(NCFL), a national nonprofit organization based in Louisville, Kentucky, that provides
advocacy, research, and training for family literacy programs and service agencies
throughout the country. During my 30 year career in education, I have worked at the
local, state, and federal levels to help establish a support system for hteracy programs that
teach parents and children together in order to break the mtergeneranonal cycle of poverty
and undereducation.

In my time today, I would like to briefly describe the national ‘family literacy mox"er;nent, its
effectiveness in helping thousands of families attain self-sufficiency and imprdve academic
achievement, and other information that may be apb'ropriate to consider in the
reauthorization of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act.

The National Center for Family Literacy is now in its tenth year of guiding the practice of
family literacy, through improvements in teaching techniques, research-related projects,
and program development, to meet the demands of social and economic change. To date,
NCFL has conducted family literacy trainings in all 50 states, as well as Washington DC,
and has provided training or techsiical assistance to more than'15,000 practitioners. Over
the course of the past decade, NCFL has worked with administrators in Head Start, Title
I, EVén Stah, Adult Education, the Bureau of Indian Affairs, and has collaborated with
numerous national nonprofit organizations and corporate partners.

One of the keys to family literacy’s success has been its flexibility and adaptability, as
evidenced by recent initiatives that focus on family literacy as a strategy for
welfare-to-work and forging local business collaboratives to sustain community education

(45)
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programs. Currently, NCFL is working to expand family literacy’s outreach through the
Toyota Families in Schools project, which targets the families of elementary school-aged
children who are-at high risk of academic failure. Our latest initiative involves working
with the Community Action Agencies under the Community Service Block Grants Act to
provide training and technical assistance to the Community Action Agencies which are a
primary support for millions of Americans living in poverty. It is from this vantage point
that I speak to you today about quality family literacy programs and what they can mean
to the nation.

" The correlation between undereducated parents and the potential failure of their-children

in schoof is well-documented. Parents who lack basic skills not only have great difficulty
fulfilling their roles as workers and citizens, their resources for supporting their children
both educationally and non-educationally are often extremely limited. Even the most
well-meaning parents pass on a legacy of undereducation to their children, who don’t
receive the support they need in the home environment to achieve academically. We
continue to see this cycle repeated through poor reading and other test scores in our
elementary schools and beyond.

The quality family literacy services about which I'm speaking today are not just a matter
of getting parents 10 read to their children, but rather these services take a comprehensive
approach to working with the whole family to improve basic skills, job skills, and life
skills. Family literacy services, as defined by the 105" Congress in Even Start, Head
Start, the Reading Excellence Act, the Community Services Block Grant Act, and the
Adult Education and Family Literacy Act, seek to make sustainable changes in a family
through the integration of four components: )

1. Interactive literacy activities between parents and their children.

2. Training for parents regarding how to be the primary teacher for their children
and full partners in the education of their children.

3. Parent literacy training that leads to-economic self-sufficiency.

~

4. Anage-appropriate education to prepare children for success in school and life
"experiences.
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It is the organized integration of these components that make family literacy a more
powerful intervention than stand-alone programs for either adults or children. Each
component and its curriculum support the other components, making for a unified learning

experience that addresses the multipie needs of the whole family.

The goals for a quality family literacy program are ambitious but attainable, both in the
short-term and long-term for varied populations that include children, men and women,
rural and urban populations, speakers of languages other than English, American Indians,
people with learning disabilities, migrant Workers, teen parents and grandparents. Family
literacy builds on the strengths of its participants, which makes it a particularly effective
and relevant approach to working with the many diverse cultures throughout the country.

Family literacy services aim to:

® * improve basic and/or English language skills and to raise the educational

level of parents;

e o help parents develop skills and knowledge needed to become employed or

to pursue further education or training;

® e increase the social and educational skills of preschool children and
elementary school children to improve their chances for success in school;

® e _ assist parents in becoming more familiar with and comfortable in school
settings and to promote parental involvement:

® e improve the learning relationship between parents and their children in
order to help foster an educational environment in the home; PR

¢  enhance the parenting skills of adult participants and their understanding of
their child’s educational development. .

Family literacy reaches out to those adults and children at the very lowest ends of the
economic continuum, many of whom slip through the cracks or are politely ignored.
Rather than giving them a handout, family literacy offers these parents and children a hand
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up, helping families build a solid foundation of education that will endure for generations

to come.

NCFL has strong, long-term evidence that family literacy programs can contribute
significant and lasting results. In 1997, NCFL documented the results of high quality Even
Start programs. The programs were identified by the study’s author, Dr. Andrew E.
Hayes of the University of North Carolina at Wilmington, as sites “that were implemented
consistently with the quality standards.”

Of the 534 children studied, the following percentage were rated “average or above” by

their current classroom teacher (grades K-5):

° o 67% on overall academic performance
° o 78% on motivation to learn

* o 83% on support from parents

* o 89% on relations with other students
* o 91% on attendance

* o 84% on classroom behavior

* o 73% on self-confidence

o o 75% on probable success in school

90% of the children studied showed satisfactory grades in reading, language and

mathematics.

That same study showed that adults made significant changes in their lives:

. e 54% of those seeking education credentials received the GED or its
equivalent.
LI 45% of those on public assistance reduced the amount they received or
ceased to receive aid altogether.
I ] 40% were enrolled in some higher education or training program.
‘e . 50% of those not currently enrolled in an education or training program are
employed.

Additional studies by NCFL and others on the impact of family literacy programs have
revealed the following:
LI Adults participating in family literacy programs showed greater gains in
literacy than adults in aduit-focused programs, and children participating in family
literacy programs demonstrated greater gains than children in child-focused
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programs. Participants in family literacy programs were less likely to drop out of
the program than were participants in adult-focused programs.

* o Parental involvement in education increases in families who take part in
family literacy programs. The NCFL Parent Survey shows practically and
statistically significant gains in the frequency that parents talk to their school-age
children’s teacher, talk to their children about their day, read or lcok at books with
children, are seen reading or writing by their children, take their children to the
library, volunteer at school, help children with homework, and attend school
activities.

* o A follow-up study of former family literacy children in Rochester, New
York, showed that while only 11% scored above the 20th percentile on a
nationally-normed vocabulary test upon entering the family literacy program, 87%
scored above the 20th percentile on a standardized reading test four years later as
first and second graders.

These statistics, as powerful as they are, don’t even begin to represent the real-life stories
of the thousands of parents and children who have found success with the help of family
literacy programs—the families who started with little money and education and even less
hope, who are now self-sufficient, and ooking forward to a brighter future for their
children and for their children’s children.

Quality family literacy programs do exactly what we want federal programs to do—they
maximize the investment, working to meet the needs of the whole family together rather
than fragmenting services. Pulling Title I funds into family literacy weaves another strong
thread into the quilt, the human fabric of our nation.

Against this backdrop of the success of the national family literacy movement, NCFL
urges the committee to consider several recommendations during the reauthorization of
the Elementary and Secondary Education Act.

Recommendations:

e 1. 18 Family Literacy Strategy with Comprehensive School Reform

The Comprehensive School Reform demonstration program is an excellent strategy for
encouraging Title [ schools to adapt proven models of school reform to individual sites.
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NCFL believes that this program should be incorporated into the Title I authorization with
one important modification. The implementation of “family literacy services,” as defined
in Even Start and the Reading Excellence Act, should be encouraged in this section.
Funding should be encouraged for direct costs associated with implementing family
literacy services, as well as costs for receiving technical assistance and training in family
literacy implementation, and to help bring together family literacy collaborators, such as
adult education, English language instruction, parental support programs, and early
childhood development services.

e 2. ab Family Literacy Services Definition, Cross Referenced to Even Start

ESEA makes reference to family literacy services and Even Start in several places;
however, there is no definition. of family literacy services outside the Even Start and
Reading Excellence Act parts. This limits family literacy services to a funding source,
rather than being seen as a set of services that will benefit children and parents regardless
of the funding source. The definition of family literacy services should be included for all
of ESEA as follows:

Add Section 1202 (f) Definition. -- For the purpose of this Act --

“(1) the term ‘family literacy services” means services provided to participants on a
voluntary basis that are of sufficient intensity in terms of hours, and ofsufficient duration,
to make sustainable changes in a family and that integrate all of the following activities:
(A) Interactive literacy activities between parents and their children;

(B) Training for parents regarding how to be the primary teacher for their children and full
partners in the education of their children;

(C) Parent literacy training that leads to economic self-sufficiency;

(D) An age-appropriate education to prepare children for success in school and life
experiences.”

This definition reflects the definition of family literacy services that is consistent with

congressional action during the'105th Congress and regulatory effect such as in the
guidance for the implementation of the Family Literacy Federal Work-Study Waiver (34

CFR Part 675).

This definition will give guidance to all references to family literacy services and is placed
in section 1202 (f) (the Federal Even Start Family Literacy program) in order to give

o
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practitioners and policy makers guidance on the structure of best practices for family

literacy services.
3. Modify FINDINGS, Section 1001 (C) (7)

All parents can contribute to their children’s success by helping at home and becoming

" partners with teachers so that children can achieve high standards. “FOR PARENTS

O
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WITH LOW LITERACY OR ENGLISH LANGUAGE SKILLS, PARTICIPATING IN
FAMILY LITERACY SERVICES CAN ENHANCE THE CONTRIBUTION THEY
MAKE TO THEIR CHILD’S SUCCESS.”

(The original statement does not adequately recognize the difficulty that parents with low
literacy or English language skills have in supporting their children’s education. Family
literacy is an effective strategy for strengthening the parents’ involvement and support of

their child’s learning.)

4. Modify Statement of Purpose, Section 1001 (d) (6)

“affording parents meaningful opportunities to participate in the education of their children
at home and at school, AND, WHEN NECESSARY TO FACILITATE THIS -
PARTICIPATION, HELPING CHILDREN AND THEIR PARENTS OBTAIN ACCESS
TO FAMILY LITERACY SERVICES.”

(Title Lis appropriately aimed at improving classroom learning for children. However, it
must recognize the role of parents in the learning process and that parents with low
literacy and English language skills can play a-more constructive role if they obtain
effective family literacy services.)

5. Modify LEA Assurances, Section 1112 (c) (1)
Amend section 1112 (c) (1) by adding after subparagraph (E) the following:

“(F) coordinate and collaborate, to the extent feasible and necessary as determined by the
local education agency, with other agencies for the purpose of providing family literacy
services to families of children attending schools participating in this title;”

and redesignate succeeding subparagraph accordingly.

6. Modify Building Capacity for Involvement, Section 1118 (¢) (2) (B)
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“training to help parents to work with their children to improve their children’s
achievement, INCLUDING THE DELIVERY OF FAMILY LITERACY SERVICES;”

7. Allow the Bureau of Indian Affairs to administer the Indian Even Start the same way in
which it administers Title 1. Also, recognizing-the Bureau of Indian Affairs as a state
education agency for the purposes of Even Start will help Even Start reach more of this
population in great need of family literacy services.

Chairman Goodling was generous enough to conduct a policy roundtable with
Representative Ernie Fletcher and Representative Anne Northup at the National
Conference on Family Literacy last month. At this public forum, some of these
recommendations were discussed, as were several others. A transcript of the event is
being prepared by a court reporter and will be distributed to all-the. members of this
committee. Once this transcript has been received, I respectfully ask the Chairman that
the transcript be submitted for the record.

Conclusion

‘Implementing an effective family literacy program is not easy, because it requires
integration of services to focus on the entire family unit, rather than just one fragment of
the family. It also requires quality in all of the component parts, so that the synergy of
combining.them will yield results that far outmeasure the components offered in isolation.

For more than ten years, NCFL has been at the forefront of efforts to make the most
important connection in education -- giving parents the tools they need to be their child’s
first and best teacher. Recognized by academics and policy makers as invaluable to
American education and multigenerational-empowerment, family literacy, as supported by
NCFL, improves the lives of children and families like few other efforts. Reauthorization
of ESEA provides Congress with a golden opportunity to expand this effort.

I deeply appreciate the opportunity to participate in today’s hearing and present our
perspective on how family literacy can build upon the foundation of the.Elementary and
Secondary Education Act, as we move closer to our goal of strengthening families and

breaking the cycle of intergenerational poverty.

Thank you.
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Mr. Chairman. Itis a special pleasure to have this opportunity to testify before you
today. Even Start has been near and dear to my heart since 1986 when, as a member
of the staff of this committee, I worked with you to organize the first hearing on

family literacy.

It is appropriate that Sharon Darling is here today as well, since she was a participant

in that first hearing as well.

Things sure have changed in the intervening 13 years! What began as a concept and a
program idea to a very few people has become a national movement. Even Start itself
has grown, but just as importantly, many states and local communities are now

funding these services with their own resources.

I am going to address two issues m my testimony this morning;:

1. What have we learned from the national evaluations of Even Start that points to
new directions for program improvement; and,

2. What research base could be brought to bear on family literacy services to

improve their effectiveness.

Since the day Even Start was signed into law, the research base supporting the

important role that parents’ play in their children’s literacy development has grown.
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In a recent presentation by Dr. Reid Lyon of the National Institute for Child Health
and Human Development (NICHD), he listed having language and literacy
experiences during infancy and the preschool years as one of the six factors that
research clearly indicated h;d a major role in preventing reading difficulties. In
making this point, he cited 45 researchers who have examined the importance of

language and literacy experiences during infancy and the preschool years.

The evidence is clear. If we are going to mount a national effort to have all children

reading well, then family literacy — that is, parents — must be a part of the solution.

Rather than asking whether we should have family literacy programs, we need to
identify effective ways to empower parents with the skills and knowledge they need
to become partners in their children’s education. Without this home support, we are

fighting with one hand tied behind our back.

Tt is important to remember that family literacy, as an educational approach, is a
relatively new phenomenon.' Only over the past 10 years has there been a serious,

concerted effort to build an infrastructure for family-based literacy services.

We have to be honest. When we started out we knew what the problem was, but we

did not have the experience or a research base to tell us what would work best.

ot
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e So, when I talk about the results of the Even Start evaluations, you need to think

about them like you would the formulation and testing of treatmerits for cancer. .

e The problem is so important and central to our concerns; we can not stop funding the
work because we have not found the cure or the “answer.” In both cases, so long as
there is a methodical, scientifically based approach, we must continue to search for

better solutions to the problem.

e Fortunately, Even Start has had a strong evaluation component built into it from the

start.
¢ What are some of the things we have learned?

¢ On targeting, Even Start has been right on the mark. The families being served are
among the most in need for educational services. Eighty-seven percent of enrollees
do not have a high school diploma. Fifty-four percent have not progressed beyond 9*
grade. The parents are getting younger and most of the families’ incomes are below

the poverty level.

e We are certainly reaching the right families. However, looking at the research on
other programs — education, job training, and social services — that have targeted this
population for assistance, we know that it will be extremely difficult to make

significant economic and educational changes in their lives. No one has come up
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with the answer yet, so we must see Even Start as part of this national effort to solve

this critical problem.

In terms of outcomes, the data on Even Start has been a mixed message. There are
positive gains in children’s literacy and cognitive development that appear to be

associated with participation in family literacy.

Even Start helps parents get a GED. Given the role that a high school diploma plays
in opening doors to both job and educational opportunities, this is an important
outcome. While parents in Even Start also made gains in literacy skills, it did not
appear from the results of the first evaluation that these improvements were any -

greater than adults in the control group.

In an assessment of support for literacy development in the home, it appears that

Even Start families are making gains not seen in families in the control groups.

Beyond these specific findings, what are some of the things that we have learned

from the evaluations of Even Start and other research on family literacy programs?

First, we are learning how to do this kind of program evaluation better. The
Department of Education is currently working with Abt Associates in designing and
carrying out the third wave of the Even Start evaluation. Building on what has been

learned, this will be the strongest evaluation to date. For example, there will be a
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large sample of families who will be compared to a control group and the contractor
for the study will be very involved in terms of assuring data quality. In other words,

we are getting progressively better and more definitive data and results.

o Second, we have leamned some specific things about what appear to make a difference
in implementing effective programs. For example, the data from the first evaluation
pointed to the fact that programs that had more educational contact hours with parents
and families had more positive results. This finding lead to an amendment to the
Even Start statute reqﬁiring programs to offer intensive services to families. The
Department of Education has also provided a great deal of technical assistance on this

issue.

e Not only are we learning things about family literacy, but we are using it in a process

of program improvement.

e Third, I think we must keep learning about what works and continuously improving
the family literacy model. We need to make sure that every program is aware of what
we do know and is using that information to improve their programs — and the
National Center for Family Literacy plays a huge role in this regard! And we must
continue to fund research and evaluation to determine what educational services work

best with which families.

o On this last point, I would like to make two observations and recommendations.

Q 82
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It appears to me from the evaluation results and the theory about why family literacy
is such a potentially powerful approach that the adult/parent education component is
critical. When you think about it, we are not asking the children to do anything very
different than we expect of all children. Grow, learn, and develop on track with their
peers. We are asking more of the parents. Not only are we asking them to improve
their own literacy skills — to pass the GED test, for example — but we are also asking

them to use those literacy skills in helping their children become literate.

For someone reading and writing at a very low level, this is a huge undertaking. So,
the adult and parent education components have to be extremely effective. I am
afraid that this is not the case in enough instances. Most Even Start programs form
partnerships with adult education programs in their communities for this component.
Overall, this is a good thing. However, to the extent that these adult education
programs do not make the goals of the family literacy program an explicit part of
their planning and instruction, they are less likely to equip parents with the skills they

need to help their children.

[ believe that we need to work harder at improving the adult education component of
family literacy by helping these programs fine tune their services to the goals of the
family literacy approach. The NIFL and the Department of Education, working with

the NCFL, can do this.
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e My second observation is that it appears that some Even Start programs do not
adequately focus on literacy as their overriding objective. When you think about the
lives of these families, it is not surprising that programs feel a need to broaden the 4
issues they try to address. You have seen the same phenomenon occur in Head Start
and other such programs. However, it will be di_ fficult enough to make advances on
the literacy front even if we do make that our clear focus and since Even Start is

evaluated on the basis of literacy gains, we simply must be dedicated to this goal.

o Ibelieve that the research carried out over the past 20 years on literacy development
in children would be an excellent tool for both improving the quality of literacy
instruction in family literacy programs and enhancing these programs’ focus on

literacy goals.

e Research carried out with support from the National Institute for Child Health and
Human Development, the Department of Education and other organizations
underscores the importance of an intergenerational approach. To date, however, the
focus of interventions has been on how this new information can be implemented in

the context of traditional elementary school classrooms.

e The NIFL could lead a collaborative effort with NICHD, ED, and other private
organizations — like NCFL -- to design and test family literacy models that
incorporate what we have learned about how children and adults learn to read and

how it is that parents support literacy development in the home and the community.
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Information and materials based on our best scientific findings could then be used by
trainers and programs to implement this new knowledge in the family literacy
context. We simply do not have these models at this time. No one has worked out
the application of this knowledge to the family literacy setting. If we want to see
strong, consistent positive results from Even Start and family literacy programs, I
believe we must get this work done and then make sure we train the providers to

include it in their program implementation.

We are talking about a multi-year, somewhat expensive proposition. There are other
things that we can and are doing in the meantime to continuously improve the
program. But going back to the analogy to cancer research, if we believe that our
nation’s literacy problem is an important one, and we are committed to doing better to

solve it, then we should find a way to make this investment and get this job done.

Thank you!
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Good Morning Mr. Goodling and members of the Committee. I would like to thank you for your
long standing support of the Even Start Family Literacy program. Today, my comments to you
are specifically about Pennsylvania and how we have.used the Even Start program to jettison
larger efforts that are designed to address issues specific to Pennsylvania. I hope my testimony
provides you with an illustrative example of why states need flexible federal legislation to

accomplish state goals.

First, | would like to tell you a little about myself. My name is Chery! Keenan and I am the
Director of the Bureau of Adult Basic and Literacy Education in the Pennsylvania Department of
Education. I am responsible for the administration of the Even Start Family Literacy program as
well as Title Il of Workforce Investment Act (WIA), the Adult Education and Famil~y Literacy
Act, in addition to related state programs. My comments today come from the perspective of
someone who is responsible for designing state programs that leverage state, federal and local

funds to fit the needs of my state under the leadership of Pennsylvania's Governor, Tom Ridge.

The work of this current Congress, specifically in ad;/ancing the opportunities to design
comprehensive family literacy services, is well noted. The opportunities you have provided to
states through Title II of WIA, the Reading Excellence Act, Even Start, Head Start, and
Community Services Block Grant give states the unparalleled opportunities to use family literacy
to accomplish multiple public policy priorities. I would like to tell you a Pennsylvania story

about family literacy.

In 1992, when Even Start was transferred from federal to state control, Pennsylvania was
awarded $3.3 million. With those federal resources, we funded 15 projects which increased to 24
programs by 1998. As a result, Pennsylvania grew strong expertise in family literacy and a

strong base of support as demonstrated by the following:
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. Several of Pennsylvania’s projects were chosen by USDOE for representation on two
national projeéts: the creation of a national publication entitled, “Guide to Quality Indicators
for Even Start Programs” and an observational émdy of exemplary programs.

. Even Start programs played a key role in the establishment of the Family Literacy
Division within Pennsylvania Association for Adult and Continuing Education in 1997.

o ' The Even Start programs began the development and finalization of a new family

literacy-evaluation system to measure the effectiveness of family literacy in Pa.

During the FY 1998-99 budget process, Governor Ridge proposed a new state family literacy
initiative by earmarking $3 million of the state adult literacy appropriation for family literacy
programs. In the early déys of policy decision making about how these moneys would be used,
we turned to our Even Start programs to advise us on critical issues of practice. One of the first
decisions made was to merge Even Start and the Pennsylvania Family Literacy Program into one
comprehensive statewide program of family literacy. That decision allowed us to leverage
available current federal funds to effect an $8 million family literacy program. The net result
was expanding family literacy services to 53 family literacy programs within 36 counties serving
approximately 2500 families. Even Start personnel have been called on to provide leadership
and technical assistance to new providers just signing on to family literacy services and in
creating a statewide training and technical assistance network for family literacy. The work
already in progress to evaluate family literacy services puts us years ahead in designing a
statewide evaluation system. In ;short, the existence of a strong network for Even Start programs

was instrumental in Pennsylvania achieving its family literacy goals.

The second point I would like to make is that states need flexible pieces of federal legislation to

achieve state determined policy priorities. In designing the family literacy program in
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Pennsylvania, we reflected on the major priorities the Governor has set for education and

economic and workforce dévelopment along with the critical needs of the Commonwealth, The

family literacy program was designed to support and to add value to existing initiatives in the

following ways.
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Family literacy can ensure academic achievement for all students as defined

by the Pennsylvania Academic Standards.

Under Tom Ridge's leadership, Pennsylvania adopted high academic standards for
the academic success of all children. Family literacy programs support the
academic success of children by providing preschool children with appropriate
early childhood experiences that will ensure children enter school with the
readiness skills needed for academic success as defined by the state standards.
Family literacy prepares parents to be active partners in the literacy acquisition of

their children.

Family Literacy supports the Governor's early éhildhood reading initiative,
Read to Succeed. '

The goal of Read to Succeed is that every student will be able to read with
comprehension no later than the end of the third grade. Pennsylvania has made a
substantial monetary commitment to this goal by appropriating $35 million in the
first year of the initiative and a total of $100 million over a three year period. The
initiative is designed to provide an early literacy intervention plan of intensive
reading instruction for students who are not progressing towards sufficient levels

of proficiency on the state standards for reading. Read to Succeed acknowledges ‘
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the importance of parent support of children in literacy acquisition, a primary
tenet of all family literacy programs. Therefore, school districts applying for
Read to Succeed funding must demonstrate how parents will be meaningfully
involved in planning and implementing the reading program through preschool
and primary levels in collaboration with family literacy and adult literacy
programs. Reading activities offered through Read to Succeed must extend
reading activities into other community based resources that include public

libraries, Head Start, family literacy, and childcare programs.
Family Literacy works collaboratively with strong public libraries.

Governor Ridge has committed to strengthening public libraries in Pennsylvania
through a doubling of resources over a two year period to build the critical
infrastructure of the library system. This commitment has provided new
opportunities for collaboration with family literacy programs that include Family
Literacy and Library Partnerships for Reading to provide expanded opportunities
for reading programs throughout the summer months and to extend reading

activities beyond the school into community settings.

Family literacy supports the Commonwealth’s economic development

agenda.

With the creation of Team Pennsylvania, the Governor’s comprehensive economic
development strategy, Governor Ridge created a vision for workforce
development that built upon a foundation of skills and knowledge of PA’s

workforce as the key to providing enhanced opportunities for individuals and
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economic competitive advantage for businesses and communities. Included as a
goal for Pennsylvania’s workforce system is an educated workforce with relevant
skills. In establishing the Team Pennsylvania Human Resource Investment
Council (HRIC), Governor Ridge included state and federally funded adult
education and family literacy programs under the purview of the HRIC.
Consequently, family literacy in Pennsylvania is viewed not only as supporting an
overall educational agenda, but also as supporting the economic competitiveness
of the Commonwealth. Family literacy includes critical adult education services

that integrate work-based skills into the adult education curriculum.
Family literacy prepares adults for economic self sufficiency.

Beginning with the Even Start program in 1992 and extending to the entire family
literacy program in 1998, the Commonwealth initiated plans to use the family
literacy program for those most in need of services. With the recent changes
under the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Program,
Pennsylvania is complementing its welfare-to-work provisions with family
literacy in order to strengthen families and help prepare adults for the “world of

work”.

Services are prioritized to individuals based the welfare recipients ability to obtain
and keep jobs. Programs are designed to provide optimum intensity for those in
early stages of welfare support and are also provided as wrap around services for
those who must be participating in a work activity under Pennsylvania law.
Family literacy services are a part of an individual’'s Agreement of Mutual

Responsibility and family literacy programs are working with County Assistance
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Offices to define appropriate educational plans for welfare recipients. Special
Demonstration Welfare-to-Work programs are designed to assist adults in existing
family literacy programs to meet welfare requirements and prepare for

employment or enhance their skills for advancement.

Communities are collaborating to deliver a new range of services to families.
Partnerships have been established between local adult education providers, such
as Intermediate Units, Literacy Councils, Area Vocational-Technical Schools,
community colleges and libraries; and early childhood education organizations,
such as Head Start, school districts and licensed child day care centers, to

combine resources and support education as well as welfare reform goals.

In these ways, family literacy is supporting broad policy goals that have been set to

address the needs of Pennsylvania's citizens. In reauthorizing the Even Start program, |
hope Congress recognizes that states require optimal flexibility in order to pull state and
federal programs together in ways that address state specific needs. There are no cookie

cutter approaches to literacy that fit all 50 states.

The third point is I will make is about how Pennsylvania is approaching accountability
for its family literacy programs. We believe that the ultimate accountability that exists is
between the Commonwealth and its local programs because ultimately Pennsylvania has
the greatest need to ensure that its citizens are properly served. One example of this
philosophy is in Pennsylvania's Adult Education program. Pennsylvania adopted a
rigorous approach to continuous improvement and program performance standards for its
adult education programs prior to the enactment of federal legislation requiring those

components. Already, Pennsylvania has extended those accountability requirements to
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the adult education components of the family literacy program and is engaging family
literacy programs in meaningful program improvement activities. Additionally,
Pennsylvania is developing a planned course of action to develop appropriate
accountability measures for the entire family literacy program whether or not they are
required by federal legislation. We will approach those measures of accountability in
coordination with the myriad of other programs designed to accomplish Pennsylvania
goals.

In conclusion, [ wish to re-emphasize that Pennsylvania has used the opportunities
provided by the federal Even Start program to create a statewide comprehensive family
literacy program in the Commonwealth. The existence of a strong family literacy
program through Even start has allowed our state to create a large scale family literacy
initiative by (1) drawing upon the strong program expertise for program and instructional
leadership and (2) playing off the strong public support that Even Start has built since its
inception. Without the federal Even Start program, it is unlikely that Pennsylvania would
have mobilized its state resources as quickly as it did to achieve its goals. However. and
more importanily, Pennsylvania has managed to use the family literacy program to
support what Pennsylvania needs to ensure the academic success of its students and
realize its economic development agenda. Our approach to accountability is one that
makes sense for the quality of our programs and for coordinating those measures with
other initiatives that family literacy supports. As a result of the agenda we have
developed in Pennsylvania, the goals of the family literacy program are to (1) help
parents become full partners in the education of their children. (2) to assist children in
reaching their full potential as learners, (3) to provide literacy instruction for parents. and
(4) to help families break the cycle of welfare dependence. By implementing specific

state initiatives such as Read to Succeed, Pennsylvania Academic Standards. and Team
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Pennsylvania, Pennsylvania has positioned family literacy to be an important contributor
to things that are important to Pennsylvania: its children, its families, its communities,

and its competitive advantage for its businesses and citizens.
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TESTIMONY BEFORE THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EARLY CHILDHOOD,
YOUTH AND FAMILIES
Dayle Bailey, Adult/Parenting Educator
Richmond County Even Start Family Literacy Project
Rockingham, North Carolina
May 12, 1999

I'd like to tell you today about Even Start and how this
program and the opportunities it offers is making a difference in
the lives of many families in Richmond County.

Our Even Start program began in response to a disturbing
trend of increasing numbers of children entering kindergarten each
year with significant developmental delays particularly in
language. This was especially true in our school district, which
is located in one of the most impoverished areas of the county.
Many of the parents of these children were undereducated and

unemployed or barely making it at minimum wage jobs. A large

number of these children lived in single parent households , often
with the Mom providing the sole support for the family, usually
through public assistance. In spite of on going efforts on behalf
of the school staff to encourage parental involvement, there was
very little participation in school activities and in the child's
learning. Many parents seemed apathetic, appearing to place full
responsibility for their child's education with the school staff.

As we began to implement our family literacy program we soon
realized that what we viewed as "apathy" on the part of parents in
our schocl district was insecurity and fear...fear that they would
appear inadequate in the eyes of the teachers. Many also believed
that since they had not succeeded in school, that they were not
quadlified to nelp educate their children...better to let teachers
do the job. Not only did the parents doubt their own abilities,
but they did not realize the importance of their role as motivator
and teacher to help ensure their child's educational progress and
future success.

Often parents lacked support systems, and they felt isolated
and powerless to make positive changes in their lives. The
educational and social services available in the community did not
meet the needs of many families because the family members did not
know how to utilize available resources. Or, they had too many
barriers to overcome in order to make use of these services, such
as lack of childcare, transportation, and/or poor communication
skills.

(81)
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A solution was found in the Even Start family literacy
program, which provides the basis for an effective
home/school/community partnership. Not only does Even Start
provide educational opportunities for parents and their children,
but it also offers an opportunity to centralize, coordinate and
build upon existing community resources. Representatives from
local service agencies have been recruited as active partners in
our project in providing for individual and family needs that are
beyond the scope of the educational components.

At Richmond County Even Start parents and children attend
school together at Rohanen Primary school. Parents and children
are provided integrated, holistic educational opportunities which
accommodate student interests, needs, and emerging literacy
skills. This is offered through three components: early childhood
education for 3 and 4 year olds, adult education, and parenting
education, with a family focus on learning.

Through the early childhood component, preschool children
are provided activities and experiences through discovery, play,
and exploration that promote problem solving skills, nurture
creative thinking and facilitate all areas of development. These
preschool classes are nationally accredited through NAEYC.
Language development is the main focus of this component. Our Even
Start children have shown average gains ranging from 16 to 24
months in language for 9 months of instruction during each of the
5 years of program implementation.

At the same time, the parents are provided opportunities and
experiences through adult education and parenting education that
focuses on the adult learner in the context of being a parent, a
responsible citizen, and a member or future member of the
workforce. The staff of each instructional component works
together as a planning team to provide a welcoming, supportive
environment that begins to break down the barrier of anxiety and
fear that keeps many adults from returning to school. The staff
constantly strives to help students continue in the program until
their goals are met. We have had a yearly average attendance rate
of 90% or above with an average retention rate of 85%.

The adult classes are provided on site at the primary school
that houses Even Start's preschool classes. This allows for daily
interaction between parent and child in a school setting. Parents
not only explore parenting issues in their Parent Education class
but have an opportunity through PACT to practice strategies
discussed. During this time the instructional team models
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positive ways to interact with children and motivate or facilitate
their learning.

Further strategies used to promote positive parenting 1nc1ude
parenting workshops facilitated by the Even Start staff,
representatives from various community agencies such as the health
department, the developmental evaluation center, and local
hospitals, which offer workshops on issues such as child
development, health and safety, behavior management, and other
areas as requested by the parents. Literacy, however, remains the
primary focus of the parenting component. Parents and children
enjoy reading activities offered through programs such as "Book
It" and MOTHEREAD, as well as reading experiences provided by
school resource teachers and by the local library, where most
parents have received and use their library card. Our Even Start
lending library is used extensively, and is stocked with a wide
variety of books, games, and activities for the entire family to
check out and enjoy. Parents have more reading materials in their
home and are reading and enjoying reading more to their children.
Many students are participating in school functions and attending
PTO meetings, with one former student serving as PTO president
last year. Most participants, as well as former participants, are
now attending parent-teacher conferences.

Adult education has traditionally focused on literacy
activities that are integrated throughout the adult education and
parenting education component. However, our program is constantly
evolving to meet the changing needs of the participants. One
example of this is the increasing emphasis on employability skills
attainment due to the welfare to work initiative. In the past,
most adult students expressed the desire to earn a GED
certificate, with hopes of getting a job or a better job in the
distant future, or perhaps of continuing their education. Now 40%
of our students are involved in the welfare to work reform
program, and their focus is on learning the skills necessary to
get a job now. 1In order to accommodate these students we have
made the following additions and changes to our literacy strand: a
30 hour employability skills workshop is offered to all students
at our site through the Human Resource Development department of
Richmond Community College. This includes practice in job seeking
skills and techniques such as completing job applications and
resumes', job searches through a variety of resources within the
community, visits to local businesses, practice job interviews,
exercises to promote problem solving, teamwork, and leadership.
These skills are also practiced by students serving as class
leaders on a rotating basis, serving on student committees, and
having multiple opportunities to direct their own learning.

L N

RIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



84

Students also volunteer throughout the school, including in the
classrooms, the offices and the library, as well as volunteering-
for various duties in the adult classroom.

As an example of an effective school/business partnership,
Sara Lee Corporation recently donated 12 computers and printers
for the adult students. Students now participate in computer
classes twice weekly, and have become proficient in basic computer
skills. Plans are in the works next year for job shadowing through
local employers.

By striving to meet the needs of the students in our program,
we have celebrated many student successes. Each year the students
have shown gains in reading and in math that have exceeded our
stated objectives. 1In addition, many have met or have exceeded
their stated goals of improving math, reading, and writing skills,
as well as earning their GED and/or obtaining a job. Five have
completed Effective Teacher Training courses and are working in
the school system as substitute teachers or teacher assistants.
Two are employed by Even Start, while at the same time attending
college and rearing a family.

Our Even Start program has not only had a positive impact on
our current and former participants, but it has also had a
rippling effect throughout their families and the community. Our
students are our best recruiters, and they have influenced others
to join our program and/or to become more involved in their
child's school.

Richmond County Even Start serves as a mentor site for new
Even Start projects throughout the state. We are currently
participating in a research study through the University of North
Carolina at Chapel Hill. They are compiling data on former
students. Data they have shared with us has indicated continuing
positive success in school, with children continuing to function
at or above grade level.

Many of our nation’s families seem to be in crisis.
Even Start Family Literacy Programs are one avenue of hope for

many of these families. It is our hope in Richmond County that
this opportunity will not be closed to them.
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SUPERVISOR, EVEN START FAMILY EDUCATION PROGRAM, OKLAHOMA
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STATEMENT
or
MARY S. BROWN, PROGRAM SUPERVISOR
-OKLAHOMA CITY -PUBLIC SCHOOLS
_EVEN START PAMILY EDUCATION PROGRAM
CAPITOL HILL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
2717 S. ROBINSON
_ ORLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73109
PHONE: (405)235-0801 FAX:(405)231-2036
. MAY 12, 1999

@&n

ERIC | 83

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



[E

88

The Oklahoma City Public Schools Family Literacy program
received Even Start funds for the legislated limit of eight
years. It was validated as a model program by the US
Department of Education in May of 1993. By the end of eight
years, the program had developed many collaborative
partnerships that were vital to its operation and the in-kind
budget exceeded the grant amount by approximately $72,000.
Even with this degree of success and with sc many
collaborations, an excellent program would not have survived
without Title I support. However, with Title I support, the
original program survived and a second Even Btart grant was
awarded to the district to open three new auxiliary sites.

For Even Start family literacy programs to survive
beyond eight years, there must be some other consistent,
sufficient source of !undingl available. Since the goals of
Title I and Even Start are so compatible, it seems logical
that the two programs be supported with funds from the same
basic source. Even Start grants that establish family
literacy programs are, after all, funded by Title I - Part B.

Fortunately, at about the same time that the OCPS
had to secure other funding, an article appeared in
the Third Quarter 1996 issue of Window on the World of ramily

teracy which stated that “Title I, the largast funding
portion from the Elementary and Secondary Act (ESEA) may be
the best untapped source of funding for family literacy
programs.~ The article titled ~“Strengthening the Ties

Betweon the New Title I and Family Literacy” strongly
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advocated the use of Title I funds to implement family
literacy in public schools. Mary Jean LeTendre, Director of
Compensatory Education Programs at the U.S. Department of
Education was quoted as saying, ‘"Any school that runs a
schoolwide program does not have to ask for any kind of
permission to run an Even Start program.”

The use of Title I funds to support family literacy
programs in elaementary schools :would not only make it
possible to serve mors at-risk familiee with the kind of
intense educational services needed to break their cycle of
undereducation and poverty; but Title I funds would also
make it possible for elementary schools to serve families
with children below mandatory school age and above the age of
seven whiéh is the limit with Even Start funds.

A longltudinal study conducted by the local evaluator :of
the OCPS Even Start program indicated that.only 19 - .or
approximately one fourth - of the .original Even Start
programs funded in 1989 are still in existence. According to
their replies .to a written suxvey, all of the surviving
programs are collocated sites which fully implement all :.four
caomponents of family literacy. An elementary school located

“ in a neighborhood with a high population of -educationally and
economically at-risk families - i.e. a Title I schoolwide
program - is an ideal setting for a family literacy program
where all of the elemsnts can function as a whole.

A study of the surveys returned by 12 of ‘the 19 original

programs reveals two keys to their survival : (1) federal or
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school district funding (which could mean Title I moniaes);
(2) association with an elementary school.

In the previously mentioned article, Mary Jean LeTendre
also says, “If I were to say what I think can be the
quintessential leveler of the haves and have nots, it would
be family literacy.” 1In 1989 family literacy was a term
which many lawmekers and citizens had never heard. In 1999,
just ten years later, family literécy has proven iteself as a
successful program with the potential to lift families from
poverty to self-sufficiency and to empower parents to advance
their own education and be positively involved in the
education of their children.

A recent report released by the National Center for
Family Literacy revealed that family literacy is included and
encouraged in very specific ways in a number of currently
reauthorized acts. These include (1) the William F. Goodling
Child Nutrition Reauthorization Act of 1998; (2) Even Start
Reauthorization; (3) the Reading Excellence Act; (5) Head
start Reauthorization; (6) Family Literacy Federal Work-
Stﬁdy Waiver; (7) the Adult Education and Family Literacy Act
(Title II of the Workforce Investment Acﬁ), and (3) Title I
Reauthorigzation.

The original intent of the Even Start law was to bring
together services that already existed in 1oéa1 cammunities
to provide comprehensive, intensive, holistic services to
families who needed them. The inclusion of family literacy

in such positive ways in all of the above legislation
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indicates that real collaboration is now occurring at the
federal as well as the local level. Surely Title I should be
one of the key participants in the new family literacy
initiative. I am grateful, for the sake of many families in
Oklahoma City, that our local schodél administrators thought
8o.

As a member of an Even S;art staff for the past ten years,
I have seen the power of family literacy at work. The
importance of a parent in a child’s education has been
demonstrated in many powerful ways in our program. Those who
have been fortunate enough to grow up "in homes where
education was valued by parents should not need anyone to
convince them -of the effectiveness of intergenerational
intervention! Only positive things can happen if the use of
Title I funds, as-well as other federal funds which inmpact
education, makes it possible to .offer more family literacy

services to more children and their parents.
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ABSTRACT OF PROJECT

In 1994, during its sixth year of operation, the Oklahoma City Public Schools Even Start
Program was validated by the Program Effectiveness Panel of the U.S. Department of Education.
as a mode! program (See letter in Appendix.) Program design is based primerily on the Kenan
Trust me; Literacy Program, to date the most succeasful nationally recognized family literacy
program. Even Start’s five components are: adult education. early childhood education, parenting
cducation, parent/child interaction and home visits. The ten year old, center based mentaring site
is located in Capitol Hill Elementary School; ts and children attend classes concurrently at
the site. Three new locations opened during the 1997-98 school year. All adult and early :
childhood clusses meet concurrently in Eisenhower Elementary School, in Olivet Baptist Church
near Eugene Field Elementary Schoo!, and at Wesley United Methodist Church near Horace Munn
Elementary School, At the mentoring site and at two auxiliary sites, classes meet four momings a
week for three hours. At Eisenhower classes meet for twenty-nine hours per week to fucilitate
collabaration with the De nt of Human Services. Adult panicitn!s must need adult education
(which may include English as a Second Languge instruction) and arents of children birth
through seven years of age. Transportation via Oklahoma City Public School buses is provided at
three sites. Lunch and breakfast through the federal school meals program are available at all sites.

The adult education cwrriculum is student driven and includes life skills, parenting skills,
Job related skills and academic instruction. The early childhood curriculum is developmentally

propriate and is designed to enhance the physical, social, emoticnal and academic success of
:E.\ldrcn in a safe, supportive and culturally sensitive environment.

Home visits provide opportunity for Even Start parent facilitators and Purents as Teachers
parent educators to meet specific individual family needs in the areas of child development,
academic instruction, parenting and referral to local community social agencics.

A primary goal for cach Even Start family is successful social, economic and academic
integration into the culturally diverse locsl community with concurrent celebration and enhancement
of each culture therein represented. The mentoring site and one auxiliary site are in a
predominately Latino area of the city; one auxiliary site provides opportunity to work with Asian
Americans as well as Latinos; the other auxiliary site is over ninety percent Africun American.

. The program has collaborative agreements with at least twelve local community
organizations, institutions and businesses to maximize its federal dollars and its services to at-risk
families. In its ninth year as it Oﬁned three new sites, the program added Title I, the Metropolitan
Library System, Parents as Teachers and two local churches as major collaborators. Indeed, the
financial committment of $330,000 of Title I money to support the total Oklahoma City Public
School District Even Start Program (letter of su port included in'grant) makes it possible for Even
Start grant money to suppon t new sites in Kxgh-need arcas.

Even Start directly addresses four of the broad-range Goals 2000: (1) children will begin
school ready to learn; (2) every school will promote partnerships to increase parental involvement;
(3) develo, l_nentnlly'npprﬁrime preschools of high quality will be available to children; and (4)
every adult in America will possess the skills and knowledge to be aresponsible citizen in a global
economy.

ﬂ: addition to participation in the national Even Start evaluation, a local evaluation tcam
conducts extensive research on program effectiveness at all four sites. These yearly evaluation
reports consistentl: indicate higﬁ rates of attendance and retention and overall succcess for
preschool and adult participants. Qualitative as weil as quantitative data is collected and reveals
many strengths of the progrom.

. The Okluhoma City Public Schools Even Start is one of the few original 1989 grantses still
in existence; it is also one of the largest in the United States.
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Strengthening theTies
Between the NewTitle |
.and Family Literacy
Title |, the-largest funding portion from the Elementary

.and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) may be the best
untapped source of funding for family literacy programs.

Family liereey .fom ons of remediation’
programs can ol shiovld w0 prevantion. thereby
sceess Tide § funds for ancouraging s funding
the!ir programy, although of preachro! programs,
this source ofien Is Sut also airased the tole
averinoked, Mary Jean of tha parent In the
LaTendre. diroctorof -child's educaiion.
Compsnsoiory. Education - “Now, in schools
Progrema at the U S, ‘saving 8 high percanings
Dreparunent of Bdusation of low:Income children,
38iQ ot ra Firth Annusl Tiie 1, Pant A funds,
-Nationd| Canferencs on slong with other federal
Fomily Litaracy, edication funds, cun be

LeTendre, who is used 10 improve laatrue-
charged with oversceing tion for the whole schoel
buth Title [ and Even and must be pandy used
Start, suld that not only ) 10 support paren: imolve
:“‘"‘"“ﬁl" ?‘“‘:" used “If | were to say whet | think cen-be ment A~

for farmuly literocy . ,Mn .10 fal
programs serving ehildren the quintessentiel leveter In ourcoune i,
from ages xero to eight. ‘try of the-hovas.and the have notx, it and schoo!. adminineaion
the ages which.Even Stan would.ba famnl "g.my,“ - during the Nahons!
covers, but under new fomlly —Mary joon LaThire, Dtrects:, Conference on Family

reguiations and-policles, Compomatsry Ldvewton Programn; US. Deperomam of Educetien Liryrecy, LaTendre

- they slao can 18 used semphasised the Impor
satend family lseracy ance of tha purentin a
arvices 10 any child in a chlid's sducation snd

whool. regardiess of age. . anplsined waya to tle Titla | funds 1o family Loy
Before 1994 reauthorization of.the Elemencary and - programming.
Secondary Bducation Act (ESEA)—now the Improving “There {s a countarintyltivenass in our public school
Ametica’s School Aci, Titie | was used primarily for pulle syatem, panicularly wmong thoss who haven 't vorked
out progrems and math and reading remadiation for with sdules.” LaTendre 1004 the group, *It's that If you
:children atiending high peveny schools: The past two apend a dollar.on the parent. you'rs taking the dollar gwsy
requthorizations of the act.chunged not onty Tide 1'% focus fror the kids, We've got to present rhe kind of svidsnce

Tird Quartet 1990 Mindie on the wwrd of foundy literacy ' n
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we need to Jst tham know that you
are. in fact, invesring not only In this
child or [n twe children, You're
Investing in the whole famlly; you're
inveating [n the fulwe of thas Amily.,
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The new Title | premetes groater
flaxibiiity in the use of federo!
dellers and « foeus on high stan-

“1 um making it cloar that you
sdll can say, In a Thle | districtor
Titls 1 school. I want to implement
«a Bven Suan madel’ in preschoel,

thas masns 0P to the age of compuls

“{f ] were to say what [ think dards for all children, As g part of sory aftendance,” she sald,
<an be the quintcssential leveler in this new offors, family literecy can But the majer changs (n Titla |
our eounuz of the haves and the ba on Integrel pare In helping and family literacy Is that Tide !
have nots,” she sald. “it would be programs "may serve kids beyond
family lreracy.™ Children reach high standorgrof BTl ah®. You mey do famlly

LeTendre sald that By family

ecadomic performénce, ™

limracy for sny age (n that achool

lirerscy ahe means programa thae
provide intanse educations) sapvices
10 both parents and children. Moss impo ¥, .r,
through those programs “the parent leans how tmperant
séucation is &nd kow to fostar that attinude.”

*Titls { says it encournges pasent lavolvement
sstegion. Including tamily Iheracy. So whet can Title |
do?" the seked the audiencs retorieally,

According © her answar, [t can do more than It could
befere the end of April whan e connecton between
family literacy and Ticle § became o litle songsr.

One thing Title | funding muy be used for ls o
schoolwids program.

YAny school that serves {s populsilon with ) 30%
poverty may nin o schoolwide pregram,” LaTendre salé,
“Qurrently therc are 8.500 schooiwide programs with tha
potantial to triple to 23.000,

“Any sehodl that runs o schoolwide program.” she
funher eapisined, “does not have to ask for any Kind of
permission 10 run an Even Swant progrem. They can o
whal they wish to with that monsy. They can eductie the
parents thoy can educste the child.

“Therc’s to be local declsion making— want to say
that loud e1d clear==iacel deciston making at the sehool
bullding level. No district should be talling a Titls I schoo!
‘this s what you'rs golag te do.’ ™ sbe emphasized,
Special commluees of tsachers, parents snd community
mambers decide how the Tie | budger will be spant in @
pedticular school.

Bven though Titls { preschoo! programs will hava o
20 Hand Blast performence sundard; beginalng with i

1956-97 schoot yeur, that will not preciude them from
implemendng en Bven Start modsl, LaTendre emphasized,

“You will probably be Umplementing hose Head Sun
performance starddards by the very nature of runatng &
§00d sarly childhood progrem,” she sald. M “Tide

| preschool programs that chooss to use ths Bven Stant
modsl, are not required to implement the proposed Head
Suant performance standards:” (A copy of the Head Start
performance sandards 10 which Title | will be accountabls
can be found in the April 22, 1996 Pederul Reglsrer.)

TSNS LeTendre announces.

“You may ruo an Even Stan
progrim.” she conrinued, “o family literacy Bven Stan
modifisd by age. sny way you want tn any Tids { schoal
{n this nation, of which thers sre 54,000, [t's In writing in
our policy manual 848 has deen sens to every LEA (lagal
educarion sgency].

'lnh:l,lhlh‘mﬁonnqulmblhnchﬂwlh
programs and Gargesed asalstance schools o include a3
compancns of thelr programs. 'strategics t incrusss
pirontal involvernsnt Including famlly ltsrecy services’

“We have made lt clear in our pollcy menusl that If ¢
mrgetnd assistance school choosas 10 havs & sirong family
lisarecy focus. it could designats end salect a3 those in
greatest nocd only thoss children whose pasents heve
educotional necdl or who do not have thelr GBD or high
school diploma.

“In addltion, our policy manual states from the
smnuce, "LEAs With & Part A gllocstion over $500.000
KAt spend at lesst 1% of s allocation for LEA and
achool level purenial involvamens scilvives, meluﬂn‘
family limresy taining snd wainiag to enh
skills.' We would expect afl LEAs to expand ul-n u
ohat lavet of resourecs,” she sald,

*“You can ke kids all tho way through schoo! with
this family literscy mode! If you want to. . . . You could
oven do it in high school,” the added.

~1 warnt you to know [Tide | funds are] avallable. You
now have every tool you need,” she sald. “You've got ¢ $7
billion program at your hands. You'vs got & mods! thars
working for family litoracy”

And, according ro LeTendro, sven with aumerous
budger cut on Caphal HilL, there should bu no fear that
Titis | funding will be reduced.

“Whasever [Congress dons), you're going to have o
Title 1 budget to work with LEAs tevel-funded next year.
*"There will be no . ., cut.” she told the sudience.
“Righi now the Houss and Sonate have Title § level-
funded from last yar . . . [ am plassed to say that thare’s

no way they're going to go backwards.

1 batleve [ramily Jiseracy [s] e intervention of the

n Windoeo an the world af pimlly lweracy Third Quaster 1996
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futurs,” LaTandre 0aid. *] bolieve lt's thaet
which will make » diffarcnce. You can gt
goosebumps, 81 [ do. when.you think ebout
imesvening with the whole family and what h
means forevor for anyone, for evefyond.

[ was the first ong in my famnlly aver 1o go
10 college,” notsd LeTundre, who grew up with

limied {n § rural Wh L
nity. "] have 8 100 now who's a lawyet, 3
deughter who completed Mr MBA/cngi

degroe, completsd bas Ph.D.. and Is now the
firs: womsn professor In 1hs business achoo] of
operations in UVA. And that's because § had a
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How to Access Titie | Funds
ForYour Family Literacy Program
» Contact tha Tide | dirsctor at the state
edueation sgency.

=.Call the superintsndent of the distrieeand
-principat of the school In your area. Teil
them sbout your program and of your
Intsrest In using Tite | funds wo suppertit.-
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pareni behind me. I had a parent who expected
sverything-from me, and [| had] some oppory-
nlty.

“You have 0 sreats opportunities.” she
onid, “] want 1o say this is the sppontualty,

* Moet with the districx Tirle | director.
* Address che PTA concerning famlly literacy.
- » Address s site raff meating about family

“Somabody sald 1o me yesrday that the lieeracy.
U.5. Deparrmen: Of Education will bave to
casvy the toreh. Well, we'll cany the torch.” she ¢ inviea saff to visit your family literaey
told the crowd, “You're going to have w light program,

the fires. . . . Muminats this whols natlon o we
can solve this problam that we have before us.

v« You''s un the wtling mige”

‘WhatTitle | Does

Title | supports parts of famlly litarucy programs in some states slready. In an elemenury
achool In F.'Miyne, Indians, Titls | prevides the preschool componant of the famlly ieracy

- program. in the Los Angeles ares, Tidla | aupports the salsries of che parent coordinators. A
- district Tide | parent lislson In the Denver arua participatas In family fiteracy parent groups.

One largar scale. Innovative school districts are considering how famlly liceracy could be
the foundation for reform for schoolwide programs. Exch of the four componants in 8 family
litaracy program could provide the rtructure of the ichaoiwide plan. Psrent involvement
would be redefined, with more durstion and Intansity than previcusly seen in Tide Land
having the additionsl advantage of extanding the serm of supporx.for fumiiles from preschool
yeara through the slememary grades.

‘WhatTitle | Can Do for You
. Fund your family liceracy preschool program.
* Pund parent dme and adult liveracy componsents of family. literacy programs.
« Fund family litarsty as a whole school reform model for schoolwide projects.
* Fund suff tralning for the parent Involvament component.

Third Quartor 1996 Windote on the world of prilly lileracy
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bybavld Chandler;:
. NCFL pn.mm manager

Anarticle ] read a few years agoin the Naslonal Center
for Family Literacy newsletter strikes me as baving some
essential ideas for the justificatlon wo develop family literacy

" in Thtlo I schoolwide projects. Titled “Solving the Problem

at the Source,” it focused on parents playing a vital rolo in
preparing thelr :hnldmn for school through family ilteracy
and | the
“Comish communities used (o determine & person's
sanity by confronting him with three slements: a spigot,
s bucket, and & ladle. As water flowed from the spigot
into the bucket, he was [nstructed to keep the water from

g
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the last resuthorizs-
_ tlon, aptly titled Im-
proving America's
Schools Act, encour-
ages the development
of schoolwlde pro-
grams, whatever a
student’s family in-
come,
Since then,
Titte ] staff have bro-
ken out of the stereo-
typo of isolated pullout
teachers with s packet
of flashesrds undor
thelr arms. They have
led the
that's argued that par-
enls who lack func-
tiogs! literacy skills
cannot provide the
guidance and encour-
sgement their young
children nesd to de-
velop and in an interest in Now Title { staff
are often the curriculum leaders of thelr schools, leading
reform efforts and making schools parent friendly. Before
the Improviog Americs's Schools Act, they didn't have the
authority to tum off the spigot.

The law gives them that authority and puts hefty sums
of funds behind it. But it's family lireracy that provides some
essentlal tools to make school reform with schoolwide pro-
grams s long-term success. NCFL's strengths model of fam-
iy lirerncy builds on the pesiuve qualities famities already
have; builds quality and dovelopmentally approprinte early

hlidhood and sl Y progr sots the stage for par-

overflowing. No mater how tously and effecilvel
he ladled water from the bucket—keeping it from mr—
flowing—he was judged insane If he failed to wm off
the spigot.”

There may be no beuer Ullustration ohha fallacy ln uy-
ing to solve the natlon's educatl; by
reforms to the K-12 grades, To dats, xhoclhndnfotml.
have achicved Limlted success because they have failed to
tum off the spigot and sddress the needs of the family as a
unit In which children learn thelr fiest and most lasting fes-
sons.

Tide 1, through famlly llteracy, is poised perfoctly 1o

play & vital role in schoo! reform by recognizing that it can
help £ill in the misaing ploces,

Since tho 1988 reauthorization of the Elementary and
S dary Act, Title I progn have played s key rofs in
raform of schoals with a high number of poor children. But
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ents to leam llteracy skills reciprocally; and facilitates par-
ents leamning from thelr children during child-directed in-
teraction.

With quallty reform models that may includs approaches
with thematic lnstruction, - whole xhoal emphasis on Ik-
eracy, and curriculum & ol
structured on current braln rn-mh. as well as un munlph
intelligencs, school reform through schoolwide programs
now has the tools.

With the potenilsl of Titla I developing 21,000
schoolwide projects, famliy literacy can help Americs reach
National Education Goals 1, S, and 8. Then we'll no longer
bave to talk about tumning off the spigot. Then we can talk

sbout reaching world clags standards.
In the words of Mary Jean LeTendry, director of com-
lon st the U.S. D of E
_"Younvwhnvemqmlyouneed.
First Quarter 1997

movement
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To: House Committee on Education and the Work Force
From: Notre Dame AmeriCorps - Baltimore — Sr. Barbara Ann English
Re: Family Literacy

Mr. Chair and Committee Members:

1 am happy to be here today to witness to the success story of Notre Dame AmeriCorps in
five places: Bostan, San Francisco, Cincinnati, Apopka, and Baltimore, We are four years
old and have done some amazing work in tutoring, after school programs, community
service projects, and family literacy. The special witness I can offer you today, however,
will be more focused on the work in Baltimore, a work I know well and love.

The story takes place in southeast Baltimore. The date is the early ‘90’s and the scene is
challenging. Non-profits, community activists, institutions, business and civic leaders,
parents and commuanity association leaders have studied census data and reflected on
trends from the period 1980-1990. We saw things like a 48.5% industrial job-loss; an
11% vacaney rate; 1099 houses up for sale in a very stable neighborhood. Callectively,
we resolved to turn the situation around. We developed a comprehensive community plan
making concrete recommendations on economic development, stabilization of housing,
and improvement in the quality of life for our neighborhoods.

One of the priority recommendations was to create:and implement a-plan on how to
strengthen and support our schools. We recognized that schools are important anchors in
neighborhoods and unless they are excellent, residents will not choose to send-their

- children to them. We also recognized that Baltimore City Public Schools are

‘under-budgeted and need the support of the entire community if they are to succeed in
their mission. To organize this action around our schools we set up the Southeast .
Education Task Force.

The Southeast Education Task Force is a dedicated group of volunteers: community
activists, non-profit representatives, parents, teachers, principals, and partners from the
University of Maryland College Park. ‘Through dialogue and reflection we set a course for
school-community partnership action in the 16 schools located in southeast Baltimore.

Enter Notre Dame AmeriCorp. Perfect timing. -In the first year of action we were able to
send to two struggling schools in our community ‘10 AmeriCorps members to get things

- done. They tutored children eight hours a day, Monday through Friday. They were an

amagzing grace for both schools.

Over the years we have been able to build the-base of AmeriCorps members to 29 in
Baltimore and 13 of them ere at the Julie Community Center where I.work. From the
‘Center these thirteen work in three elementary schools: General Wolfe, City Springs, and
Tench Tilghman.. All of them are involved directly with ‘children, but as a team, we have
concentrated on-engaging the whole family in school success. ‘That is-our special spin on

Family Literacy. - Our ‘strategies are many;
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e AmeriCorps members act as teacher aides in the classroom and work with children in
after school hours. Their focus is reading, and I am proud ta say that in every one of
the four years of service AmeriCorps members have been successful in helping children
reach one grade level of improvement in reading, sometimes two.

e Complementing their efforts with the children, the Julie Center engages adults in
instructing parents in literacy, pre-GED, and GED. Sometimes those things happen in
the same room at the same time. Most of the time they don’t. They happen in
separate spaces at different times. What is not important is where and when, what is
important is that the family is focused on success in leaming.

e AmeriCorps members work with parents whose children are not on task in school or
are acting out. Through a process of praise and rewards they encourage those parents
to be cheerleaders for their children. Notices go home with a check list of positive
things that parents can do to help motivate the child for school success and the parent
signs off to show their collaboration in the strategy to help the child succeed.

e The Julie Center provides parent development sessions at our schools. These are
spin-offs of family literacy where we work with parents and children in double
sessions, one in separate groups and one together. We read and talk about aspects of
family life sych as respect for family members, positive communication, family rules
and consequences. Another spin-off is health literacy where we work at basic health
issues through reading and reflecting on health problems and how to prevent or care
for them in a pro-active way. Yet another spin-off is Parents with Power sessions
where parents move from oral engagement around welfare-to-work to the crearion of
individual life plans for personal development, family improvement, and employment
readiness. All these efforts work together to promote family learning and set the tone
for meeting expectations that we can succeed as individuals and as families.

= Finally, | would like to relay some of our future plans around family learning and
school success. For school yesr 1999-2000 we are planning with the help of
AmeriCorps members a full-service school at Tench Tilghman Elementary School.
This school is located in the Empowerment Zone and is 8 Hot Spot community. It
suffers the plight of many urban areas in tenms of poverty, crime, and drugs. Under
the excellent leadership of Ms. Elizabeth Turner, the Principal of Tench Tilghman and
with the full collaboration of her staff, we are pursuing partnerships to provide a full
array of social-health-adult education-employment services ar Tench Tilghman.
AmeriCorps members will be engaged in the many aspects of family literacy through
this effort, as Tench Tilghman reaches out to provide a place of well-being for the
wholc family and a space where school success happens every day.

That is my testimony. Thank you for your attention and for all the support you have given
and will continue to give to educationa) efforts.
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Summary of Notre Dame-AmeriCorps’ Involyement in .
Family Literacy

Notre Dame-AmeriCorps (NDAY) is a public-private partmership boreen the
federally-fimded AﬁleriCmps program and Notre Dame Mission Volunteers, which was
started by the Sisters of Notre Dame de Namur to serve those who are mafe;n'ally poor
and oppreased. Last September marked the fourth year of this partnership. Since that
time Notre Dame-AmeriCorps members have been sarving in schools, head start
programs, adult education centers, and community outreach centers across the country,
swiving to cmpower the cconomically disadvantaged: through tutoring and ﬁ'enonal
hands-on support, The Program aims to holistically strengthen the community through
their families by focusing on literacy, conflict resolution, parent effectiveness, and after
school earichment. i '

We have a total of 93 full-time members and 30 full-time Pducation-Award-Only
members serving in the impoverished neighborhoods of Baltimore, Washinjton D.C.,
Boston, Hartford, Cincinnati, West Virginis, San Francisco Bay Arca, New Mexico and
Florida. This year our Notre Dame-AmeriCerps members are tutoring more; than 1,800
children in reading, ‘'math, and science. In addition, more than 743 childrer attend after
schoo! programs that are supported by our members. NDA members work.with parents
by tutoring over 560 adults in GED, ESL, Adult Basic Education, and Citirenship.
Additionally, more than $75 parents have been involved in parent effectiveriess
workshops and family literacy programs supported by our members. Finally, more than
170 parents are volunteering in the schools on a regular basis in part duc to the
encouragement and personal relationships developed by our members.

This academic year, our members have served over 140,000 hours. They have also
helped to recruit and supervisc over 2,300 volunteers who have in turn given over 14,000
hours of service at NDA sites. :
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NDA Baltimore-Jce

“ By Christy Pardew and Katy Larkin

Julie Community Center (JCC) sits in the heart of
Southeast Baltimere, and has been serving poor
and low-income families in the area since 1975.
However. it was in 1994 that the Julie Center,
with the help of Bobby English, SND. forged a
partnership between Notre Dame-AmeriCorps
and two inner-city neighborhood schools: City
Springs and General Wolfe Elementary Schools,

As a result, NDA has its roots in JCC, which is
now home to 12 NDA-Baltimore members, who are
given continuous guidance and support from Site

Director Mary Loy Monaghan, SND. Through the

commitment and service of our NDA members,
thie partnership has made a remarkable
difference in the lives of hundreds of children,
youths and adults alike.

General Walfe and City Springs each have six
NDA members, who are trained to perform

" Direct Instruction (DI) during the day with one-
on-ohe tutoring and after-scheo! activities in the
afterncens. DI is a scripted.instructional method
that stresses repetition as a learning tool. By
participating in the DI program, we are helping to
reach the goal of the AmericaReads Challenge to
have all children “reading well and independently
by the end of third grade.”

At City Springs our members do a little bit of
everything at the school, but the. primary focus is
;on the DI program. Local members Harriet
Burtwell, Chevella King. and Kevin Toon ore all in
their second year of service with NDA at City
.Springs, Harriet works with the second grade and

alsa in the kindergarten, especially helping to
promote the students’ self-esteem. Marriet tolks
about ane of her students+iho had no self-
esteem when she first begdn working with her.

“She was shy and withdrawn,” explains Harriet.
“After warking with her, talidng to her and
peaising her, she is finally able to do her work
without crying. She works glone without me
standing over-her. She Is How o very good
student.”

Kevin Toar's valunteer eff.orts within the school
have been knawn leng befare his membership with
NDA through the Parents on Patrol program.
Kevir's efforts have expanded even further to
date, a9 he teaches in gradgs three and four and
still finds time to serve as.a Fathers United
Officer and instructor for {he Extended Day

pregram.

Besides hoving a new baby an October 26™,
Chevella King hes been busyteaching third grode.
She is proud to report that when she and another
volunteer took the class, the children were
reading at the kindergartenilevel and have since
moved up to the third grade reading book!

Lisa \Milllm ‘Michelle Tomu and Ohum Furblur
are first-year members ot Gity Springs teaching
grades K-2. Lisa Williams serves In the second
grade during the day and I} the Extended Day
progrom with Kevin in the afterncons. She says of
her classroom experience thus for, “There are o
few students in my class that were just hot

A - Batedt
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NDA Baltimore-Julie Community Center
Page 2 of 2

putting everything they hod into the lessone, Asa
result of our one-on-ane lessons, I feel that the
progress in them on a daily basis is greatly
improved.”

City Springs Principal Bernice Whelchel has seen
the improvements being made as a result of the
NDA connection within the scheol and says ina
recant letter: °I have not, during the past years
that we have cemented our partnership, had one
worker who was not committed to our school. I
can not begin to thank you for having such a
suceessful program ﬂ\cf helps to ensure all
13 meet acad,
This commitment continues to hold true down the
street ot Genaral Welfe, where six NDA
members are tutoring by day and rumning en
after-school program for more than 50 children
late into the afterncon. -
Gerald Morton spends a substantial part of his
day working with children with behavioral
problems in the Attitude Adjustment Center. The
highlight of his year, he says, has been working
with four fifth-graders an the school's marning
radio broadcast WOLF radio. "It gets my
adrenaline flowing for the day,” he exclaims.

t

etud

Tara Wolferman and Leticia Angulo both work
with first grade. Being a native Puerte Rican,
Leticia has enjoyed using her Spanish skills in
teaching English te two students and translating
for their parents. “My students have improved a
lot,” says Leticia. “There are changes in the way
they write, they now laow haw fo read better and
think better, recognize their ABCs. They are
really smart kidsi®

Christy Pardew also uses her Spanish skills
teaching three Hispanic children, who arrived ot
the school in September with no English. I think

my best hag been sesing my d-grade
ESL student really blossom at schaal, * says
Christy. “The first day, he was so overwhelmed.
He spoke no English. Since that day, he has
qained so much confidence md has learned quite o
bit of English,”

103

Lynh Collins and Jacquetts bickerson are our fina)
two members at General Whlfe. Lynn has recently
Jmneduslnthapastmﬂdnndis'eadwg inthe
kindergarten class. Jacquéita, on the ather hand,
has been working at the sd?.ool for almost four
years now. This is her flrstlym making the NDA
connection, mdbdngnpdviaffhcpmgwn
makes her feel confident to know her own son is
being tutored by another NDA member over at
City Springs. Jacquetta spignds her days teaching
in the fourth and fifth grades ot General Walfe
and speaks for her colleagugs when she says,
*Seeing the kids' smiles medies my day.“*

Excerpted from Human. Kind., NDA Newsletter, Volone
Ons: Iszue Four.
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Opening Statement
Dennis J. Kucinich
Education and the Workforce Committee
May 12, 1999

Thank you Mr. Chairman, | welcome today’s discussion on Even Start and
Family Literacy as | believe these programs are a cruc‘ial cornerstone in building
our youth's future. Learning should never be restricted to a classroom, and these
programs help méke sure that children have the opportunity to continue to learn
outside the classroom.

Mr. Chairman, as you are aware, new studies assert that children’s
motivation to succeed in school is influenced by the education achievement of
their parents. Active parental involvement in their child’s school influences
student achievement, attendance, motivation, self-concept and behavior. These
latest studies demonstrate the importance of these programs and having parents
serve as the first teacher of their children. We must continue to encourage
parents to stay active in the schooling of their children, and most importantly to
read to thei.r children. Studies have shown that students who come from
households with active parents who read to their children have students that tend
to be higher achievers then parents who do not. Parents serve as the role
models for their children and if they do not master the basic skills then they will
be unable to provide a positive educational model for their children, and hindgr
their chances for the future.

| welcome the testimony of today’s panelists, and hope this committee will
continue to promote measures to encourage our parents and students to learn

and read.
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REFORM AND OVE|
SuscousarTees:
Census
NATIONAL ECONMOMIC GROWTH,
M ve STATEMENT BY THE HONORABLE HAROLD FORD, JR.
Tennessee-Ninth District
Hearing on Even Start and Family Literacy
Committee on Education and the Workforce

May 12,1999

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, I would like to take this opportunity to
remark on an Even Start success story in my congressional district. Ms. Tracey Boland is a
single mother of five who lives in Memphis, Tennessee. She had the initiative to do something
positive with her life as well as improve the lives of her children, so she chose to enroll in the
Even Start Program at Alonzo Locke El tary School, in September of 1997. In February of
1998, she passed the G.E.D. test and began working at Alonzo Locke Elementary as an office
assistant. Currently, Ms. Boland works for the Even Start Program as a data processor. When
asked about the Even Start Program, Tracey Boland explains, “I have made a tremendous change
in my life over the past three years and Even Start has helped me to become a successful,
independent person. I have been given the opportunity to work for Memphis City Schools and
help other parents in the program reach for success. 1 feel better about myself and my life
because I don’t have to depend on the government for assistance.

Ms. Boland’s story is indicative of the opportunity for fundamental change and progress
that is provided by the Even Start Program. Tennessee has 25 Even Start project sites that help
place parents into the classroom and launch them into careers. The effectiveness of Even Start is
demonstrated by the enrolled adult’s improvement in literacy, parenting skills, skills-based
knowledge, and parent-child interaction. These gains are received by the child as well through
improvement in child development and school readiness and performance.

* Even Start success stories can be found nationwide. As we prepare to reauthorize the
El yand S dary Education Act (ESEA) we must continue to support the program and
keep in mind that Title I allocations for Even Start play a critical role in schoolwide programs by
improving student achievement. The Title I program with its high standards, flexibility and
accountability, can be used to extend family literacy services and support the critical parental role
in a child’s education.
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